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City of
L Casa Grande

November 18, 2009

Honorable Mayor,

City Council,

City Manager

Citizens of Casa Grande, Arizona

We are pleased to submit to you the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) of the City of Casa Grande, Arizona (the City). The report was prepared by the City’s Finance Department.

This report represents management’s report to its governing body, constituents, legislative and oversight bodies,
investors, and creditors. Copies of this report are sent to elected officials, management personnel, bond rating agencies,
Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repositories, and other agencies with an expressed interest in
the City’s financial matters. Copies of this financial report will be placed in the City library for use by the general
public, and posted on the City’s web page at www.casagrandeaz.gov.

Responsibility for the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentations,
including all disclosures, rests with the management of the City. The City established and maintains a comprehensive
internal control framework designed to both protect the government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of financial statements. We believe the data presented in this report is
accurate in all material respects and fairly sets forth the financial position and results of operations of the City on both a
city-wide and fund basis. We include all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
City’s financial activity and financial stability.

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
State of America (GAAP) for local governments as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

Henry & Horne, L.L.P. audits the City of Casa Grande, Arizona’s financial statements. The independent audit
report is presented as the first component in the financial section. The examination satisfies Article VI, Section 6, of the
City Charter, which requires an annual audit of all accounts of the City by an independent certified public accountant.
The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Casa
Grande, Arizona for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, are free from material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that a reasonable basis for rendering
an unqualified opinion that the financial statements of the City of Casa Grande, Arizona for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2009, are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP.
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Additionally, the City is required to have an independent audit (“Single Audit”) of federal financial assistance
received by the City directly from federal agencies, or passed through to the City by the State of Arizona or other
governmental entities during the fiscal year. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent
auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the government’s internal
controls and compliance with legal requirements having a direct and material impact on major programs, with special
emphasis on internal controls and compliance requirements involving the administration of major federal awards.

The results of the City’s Single Audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, found no instances of material
weakness in the internal control structure or significant violations of applicable laws and regulations with respect to
major programs. The reports from Henry & Horne L.L.P. are available in the City of Casa Grande, Arizona’s separately
issued Single Audit Report.

PROFILE OF THE CITY

The City of Casa Grande was founded in 1879 and is named for the famous Hohokam Indian Ruins. Since its
incorporation in 1915, Casa Grande has grown to be the largest community in western Pinal County. Casa Grande is
located in central Arizona approximately halfway between the State’s two largest metropolitan areas of Phoenix and
Tucson, and is surrounded by three Indian Reservations. In addition, the City is located at the intersection of two major
interstate highways, which service the Los Angeles, and San Diego markets. The City is a dynamic, involved city with a
rural heritage and old-fashioned values. The economic base is a mix of retail trade, manufacturing and agriculture.

The City of Casa Grande, chartered in December 1974, has a Council-Manager form of government consisting of
the Mayor and six Council members. The Mayor is elected at-large for a two-year term and cannot serve for more than
four consecutive terms. Council members are elected to four-year terms. The City Council is vested with policy and
legislative authority and is responsible for appointing the positions of City Manager, City Attorney and Judge. The City
Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council, as well as overseeing the day-to-
day operations.

The City of Casa Grande’s legal boundaries grew substantially over the past 4 years to just over 105 squares miles.
The City completed a two year process to update the General Plan and the voters considered adoption of the 2020 Plan
on November 3", 2009. The City’s population increased by 79% over the past eight years from 25,224 to 45,116. The
City’s growth is attributed to affordable housing, proximity to labor opportunities in the metropolitan areas, and the rural
quality of life offered to the residents.

The City provides a full range of municipal services, including police and fire protection, maintenance of streets,
recreational and cultural events, library services, planning and zoning services, wastewater services, sanitation services,
airport, golf course and general administration services. The City invests in its historic downtown with the
administration of three downtown redevelopment districts, of which two are funded through Tax Increment Financing.

In 2002, the City completed the process of updating its Strategic Agenda. In its most fundamental form, this process
provides a structure for management staff to think about the current condition of the City of Casa Grande, the issues and
challenges expected to confront the City in the next five years and beyond, the appropriate role for the City Government
in responding to those issues and challenges, and the resources needed by the City government to fulfill this role.

This report includes financial statements on both a government-wide and fund basis for the primary government as
well as its component units. Component units are separate legal entities included in the reporting entity due to the
significance of their financial or operational relationship with the City. Criteria used by the City for inclusion of
activities in preparing its financial statements are in conformity with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the primary government’s
operations and are included as part of the primary government. Accordingly, the financial reporting entity consists of the
City and four blended component units, the Copper Mountain Ranch Community Facilities District, the Mission Royale
Community Facilities District, the Villago Community Facilities District and the Post Ranch Community Facilities
District as discussed further in Note 1 (A) on page 40 of the notes to the financial statements.

Vi
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EINANCIAL CONTROLS

Internal Controls

As previously noted, the management of the City of Casa Grande is responsible for establishing and maintaining a
system of internal control. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
regarding: 1) safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and 2) reliability of financial
records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes: 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and 2) the valuation of
costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

The system of internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by management and is also considered by the
independent auditors in connection with the annual audit of the City’s financial statements. All internal control
evaluations occur within the above framework. The City’s internal accounting controls are considered to adequately
safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary Controls

The City of Casa Grande, like all cities in the State of Arizona, is subject to numerous budget and related legal
requirements. Article IX, Section 20 (1) of the Arizona Constitution sets limits on the City’s legal budget capacity. The
City operates under the Alternative Expenditure Limitation — Home Rule Option. This option allows the City Council to
establish the budgetary limits locally. The voters must authorize this option every four years. It was last authorized by
the citizens of Casa Grande in March 2005. This alternative is valid through Fiscal Year 2008-2009.

In May 2007, the voters approved a permanent base adjustment to the state imposed expenditure limit. This option
allows a municipality to adjust the state imposed expenditure base from the original 1979-80 base of $3,743,397 to
$18,793,221. After adjustment for inflation and population growth, the City’s expenditure limitation for fiscal year
2009-10 will be $162,515,732.

The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated operating budget approved by the Mayor and Council. Activities of the general fund, special revenue
funds, debt service funds, capital projects funds, enterprise funds, and internal service funds are included in the annual
appropriated budget. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the
appropriated amount) is the total operating budget, as adopted by the City Council. The City additionally exercises
management control and oversight of the budget at the department level within each fund.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

The information presented in the financial statement is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates.

The economy of Casa Grande is a diverse combination of agriculture, manufacturing, commercial and service
activities, as well as a haven for retired individuals who winter in Arizona. The community serves as the provider of
many goods and services to the rural areas surrounding the City, as well as several growing communities located in the
area. This combination of diverse economic activities keeps the community from becoming overly dependent on any
single segment of the economy. In March 2004, the Community adopted a Strategic Plan for Community and Economic
Development with the purpose of developing a process to successfully implement diverse type of businesses, attract new
revenue, and expand/maintain the community revenues essential to sustaining Casa Grande and improving the quality-
of-life.

Local indicators point to continued stability. Casa Grande continues to witness a sustained, but lower number of
issued building permits. While the City has witnessed strong growth in residential building permits the past three years,
the prior two fiscal years brought anticipated slowing of the residential housing construction market. However, it also
brought a recognized shift to non-residential building permits. The City documented strong numbers in commercial
building permits for the year. The emergence of the commercial development conveys the actuality that sufficient roof-
tops have been constructed to expand the commercial markets, which in turn expands the City’s economic and tax base.

Vil
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The City continues to process several annexations annually. The expansion of the boundaries comes with new
development activities and land entitlements. Many of these areas have development proposals submitted in conjunction
with the annexation petitions. This combination of existing subdivided lots, coupled with the newly proposed, should
allow Casa Grande to witness a continued positive trend in new housing starts in the near term.

During the past year, Casa Grande’s economic foundation was firmly in place. Specific revenues are described in
further detail in the following paragraphs.

Retail Sales. The City of Casa Grande, like all Arizona cities, places a heavy reliance on City sales tax. Overall,
local sales tax revenues comprise approximately 51% of General Fund revenues. The City’s sales tax is currently at
1.8%, with an additional .2% pledged as collateral for the retirement of debt obtained to complete park and recreation
construction projects. This .2% component of the tax rate was extended and the outstanding debt was called.
Management is projecting the city’s sales tax to decrease by an additional 6% next year due to a decrease in commercial
development and a slow economic recovery.

State Shared Revenues. The City of Casa Grande receives revenue allocation from the State. These “State Shared
Revenues” include allocations of the state-collected income tax, sales tax, gas tax, and motor vehicle in-lieu taxes based
on population formulas that are created on official census data. The majority of these revenues are placed in the General
Fund, where it supports daily operations. This revenue source is expected to decrease by 12% this next year due to the
economic downturn.

The State experienced negative growth patterns in the majority of these revenue sources. One disadvantage to
placing a heavy reliance on state-shared revenues is the state legislature controls the distribution to municipalities each
year.

Property Tax. The City’s primary property tax levy decreased to .7135 from .7468 per $100 of assessed valuation.
Despite the reduction in tax levy, the City’s property tax revenue remains the same due to the number of new properties
being added to the tax rolls. Net secondary valuation within the City increased by approximately 164% since fiscal year
2004. The primary levy can be used for any general government purpose, but is limited in size by State statute. The City
has received voter authorization to issue $47 million in General Obligation debt. $11 million was issued in fiscal year
2008. The secondary tax levy beginning in fiscal year 2009 is .6308.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

In 2009 the City continued to invest in programs and services that make Casa Grande a better community. The
following are some of the efforts and accomplishments of the City during the year:

Police
0 Maintained 5 certifications of Apartment Complexes in the Crime Free Multi-Housing Program.
0 Implemented Alarm Permits program to reduce responses to false alarms.
0 Held 15" annual “National Night Out” celebration.
0 Held a Vehicle Theft Awareness Education fair with the Watch Your Car program and VIN etching.
0 Maintained over a 90% victim contact rate for cases assigned to Criminal Investigations.
Fire

0 Responded to 5,998 emergencies, of which 4,509 (75.17%) involved emergency medical services,
averaging a response time for all incidents of 5 minutes 54 seconds.

0 Maintained a department commitment for excellence in public education by increasing public contacts by
21% to 24,000.

0 Secured grant funding from the Arizona Department of Homeland Security (ADHS) for equipment to go on
the Haz Mat response vehicle.

0 Continued mentoring of the Casa Grande Fire Explorers Program.

viii
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Public Works
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Reduced amount of janitorial cleaning chemicals from ten down to four, using new chemical dilution
system.

Commenced construction of Water Reclamation Expansion Project.

Cleaned 351,041 feet of the wastewater collection system.

Replaced and installed 412 signs throughout the City.

Installed two in ground lighted crosswalks.

Collected 74.12 tons of solid waste at the landfill site.

Recycled 11% of the residential solid waste materials.

Open new fleet shop at North Operations Center.

Community Services

(0]

(o}
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o
o

Adopt A Street program has gained 14 new groups to assist with cleaning the streets during yearly clean
ups.

Held first annual Playtopia, Day of Play. Had over 22 game stations hosted by community groups.
Awarded “most outstanding sports program population 25,000-100,000” from Arizona Parks & Recreation
Association for 2008 Desert Grande Triathlon.

Continued and expanded recreational participation by 12%.

Opened the Vista Grande joint use library in conjunction with High School District.

Served a total of 20,318 meals, delivered a total of 21,641 meals to our Meals on Wheels participants and
provided a total of 3,056 transportation units.

Maintained 1,392 acres of parkland.

Accepted Villago Community Park (approximately 16 acres) into the City Parks system.

Community Development

0

(o}
(o}

Completed work on a digital Zoning map to help make zoning ordinances available on a parcel based
system

Prepared for upcoming Census 2010.

Responded to 1,331 code enforcement complaints.

OTHER MATTERS

The information presented in the financial statement is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates.

Debt Administration. On June 30, 2009, the City had a number of debt issues outstanding. Total bonded debt at June

30, 2009, was $27,910,000. This amount includes one issue of special assessment debt with government commitment.
The City’s general credit was rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and received an A- rating from Moody’s.

The City is diligent in its efforts to maintain and improve these ratings. The ratings for the existing issues are as follows:

Moody’s
Investor Fitch
Service IBCA
ID #38 Special Assessment Baa3 -
Excise Tax Revenue Obligation
Series 1997 Aaa -
Series 2003 Aaa AAA
General Obligation Bonds Aaa -
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In October 1997, the City issued $3,590,000 of Excise Tax Revenue Obligations to refurbish and restore a 1921
vintage school building for use as a new City Hall. In 2003, the City issued $18,120,000 of Excise Tax Revenue
Obligations for the purpose of expanding the wastewater treatment plant and refunding the 1994 and 1995 Obligations.

All Excise Tax Revenue Obligations are secured by a pledge of and first lien on all excise, transaction, franchise,
privilege and business taxes, state shared sales and income taxes, fees for licenses and permits and state revenue sharing,
which the City presently or in the future validly imposes or receives from other entities. As of June 30, 2009, the City
had $16,435,000 of Excise Tax Revenue Obligations outstanding.

Under State statutes the City can issue general obligation bonds for up to an amount not exceeding 20% of the
secondary assessed valuation. As of June 30, 2009, the City has debt capacity of $83,317,084 for general obligation
bonds subject under the 20% limitation based on the FY 2009 secondary assessed valuation. The City has $8,830,000 in
outstanding General Obligation bonds, with voter approval to issue an additional $36 million over the next several years.

Cash Management. The Finance Department manages the City’s investment portfolio. The City’s investment
strategy is to invest public funds with maximum security in a manner which provides a reasonable return while meeting
the daily cash flow demands of the City and conforms to all applicable state and local statutes.

Idle cash is pooled into a single investment account except for the Casa Grande Part-time Firemen’s Pension Plan.
The City of Casa Grande is a participant in the Local Government Investment Pool operated by the State Treasurer for
the benefit of counties, cities, towns and other political subdivisions of the State.

The deposits are pooled together and invested in U.S. Government securities, certificates of deposit, repurchase
agreements and high-grade corporate issues. Earnings are apportioned monthly based on total “dollar days” of the
participant’s account balance for each day of the month. At the first of each month the earnings are automatically
reinvested and a statement is sent to each participant.

The investment policy of the City is to keep risk as low as possible and then consider the yield. The majority of the
City’s funds are idle for less than 90 days at a time; therefore, liquidity also plays a major role. For these reasons and the
fact that the pool has a diverse portfolio, the City invested all of its idle funds with the Pool during the 2008/2009 fiscal
year.

The yield for the investment account averaged .73 percent for the fiscal year. At June 30, 2009, the Pool consisted
of $2.9 billion in total local government deposits, which included $113.6 million the City had invested in the Pool.

With the issuance of GASB Statement No. 31, all investments are stated at fair value in the balance sheet. The State
Treasurer’s Local Governmental Investment Pool includes liquid investments which cost approximates market. The
Firemen’s Pension Fund is stated at fair value, which totals $528,970.

Risk Management. The City is exposed to various risks of loss, related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City’s liability risks are covered by
commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. The City is fully insured with per occurrence limit at
$2 million general liability coverage with a $10,000 deductible and a $10 million umbrella liability policy.

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including workers’ compensation,
employee health and accident, airport activities and fuel use bond. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past five fiscal years.

The City of Casa Grande has an aggressive safety program that promotes employee safety on the job and focuses on
risk control techniques designed to minimize accident-related losses.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Casa Grande, Arizona, for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. This was the eighteenth consecutive year
that the City has achieved this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principals
and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to
conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada presented a Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award to the City of Casa Grande, Arizona for its annual budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008.
To receive this award, a governmental unit must publish a budget document that meets program criteria. The Award is
valid for a period of one year. This is the eleventh Distinguished Budget Presentation Award the City of Casa Grande
received. We expect to continue to participate and meet the program requirements.

ACCOMPLISHMENT. The preparation of the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was only made
possible by the dedication and hard work of Janice Rutherford, Supervising Accountant, the Finance Department, and the
firm of Henry and Horne, L.L.P. We give them our sincere thanks for their effort in the creation of this report.

We wish to express our appreciation to the City Manager, the Mayor and City Council for their support and
leadership.

Sincerely,

Qe e b
Diane Archer
Finance Director
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The Honorable Manyor and Council
City of Casa Grande, Afzona
Paga Two
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Casa Grande, Arizona (the City), we offer this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of the City of Casa Grande, Arizona for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This discussion and
analysis is designed to (1) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the
City’s financial activity, (3) identify changes in the City’s financial position, (4) identify any material deviations
from the approved annual budget, and (5) identify individual fund issues or concerns. Please read it in conjunction
with the transmittal letter presented on pages v - Xi of this report as well as the City’s financial statements beginning
on page 12 and the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

Financial Highlights

The City’s total net assets, on the government-wide basis, totaled $320 million at June 30, 2009 of which
$30 million is unrestricted. This was an increase of $9 million in fiscal year 2009, $8 million in
governmental activities and $1 million in business-type activities.

The governmental activities revenues decreased by approximately $16.3 million over the previous year.

The business-type activities operating revenues decreased by $925 thousand from the previous year.

The General Fund reported revenues in excess of expenses and other financial sources and uses by $818
thousand for the year.

At June 30, 2009, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $30.4 million, or 86% of General
Fund expenditures for fiscal year 2009.

At June 30, 2009, unreserved fund balance of the governmental funds was $70.2 million, or 94% of
governmental fund expenditures for fiscal year 2009.

The governmental activities general revenues of $41.7 million were $5.5 million less than the $47.2 million
of expenditures before other financial sources and uses.

The business-type activities net assets were $60.8 million as of June 30, 2009, which is an increase of $1.1
million from the previous year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Required Components of the
Annual Financial Report
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Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (see pages 12-14) are designed to provide a broad overview of the City’s
finances in a manner similar to those used by private businesses. These statements include all assets and liabilities
using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All
of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The activities of the City are broken into two columns on these statements — governmental activities and business-
type activities. A total column is also provided.

Governmental activities include the basic services of the City including general government
(administration), parks and recreation, police, fire, planning and development and streets. Taxes and
general revenues generally support these activities.

Business-type activities include the private sector type activities such as golf course, sanitation, and
wastewater. These activities are primarily supported through user charges and fees.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, both current and long-term,
with the difference between assets and liabilities reported as net assets. The focus on net assets is designed to be
similar to the emphasis for businesses. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. To assess the overall health of
the City, other indicators, including non-financial indicators like the City’s property tax base and condition of
infrastructure, should be considered.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed over the most recent
fiscal year. Since full accrual accounting is used for the government-wide financial statements, all changes to net
assets are reported at the time that the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
the related cash flows. This statement also focuses on both the gross and net costs of the various functions of the
City, based only on direct functional revenues and expenses. This is designed to show the extent to which the
various functions depend on general taxes and revenue for support.

Fund Financial Statements

Also presented are the traditional fund financial statements for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds. The fund financial statements focus on major funds of the City. A major fund is determined based on the %
a certain fund value is in relation to all of the same fund type — either governmental or proprietary. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or conditions.
Funds ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements as well as for managerial control
to demonstrate fiduciary responsibility over the assets of the City.

The City has three kinds of funds:

Governmental funds — Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus
on (1) how cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the
balances left at the year end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds
statements provided a detailed short-term view that helps the reader determine whether there are more or
fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. Because this
information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities. These reconciliations are on page 17 and 20, respectively.

Proprietary funds — Proprietary funds account for business-type activities of the City. Proprietary funds,
like the government-wide statements, provide both long and short-term financial information. Enterprise
funds are used for activities that primarily serve customers outside the governmental unit for which fees are
charged. The City has four enterprise funds: The golf course, sanitation, water and wastewater funds. The
internal service fund is used for activities in which the City is the customer. The fleet maintenance fund is
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the City’s only internal service fund. Its purpose is to provide vehicle maintenance services to City
departments.

Fiduciary funds — Fiduciary funds account for resources held for the benefit of others. Fiduciary funds are
not included in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support projects of the City.

Notes to the financial statements — The notes to the financial statements (pages 38-70) provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements and should be read with the financial statements.

Required supplementary information other than MD&A — Governments have an option of including the
budgetary comparison statements for the general fund and major special revenue funds as either part of the
fund financial statements within the basic financial statements, or as required supplementary information
after the notes. The City has chosen to present these budgetary statements as part of the basic financial
statements. Additionally, governments are required to disclose certain information about employee pension
funds. The City has disclosed this information in Note 8 to the financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following tables, graphs and analysis discuss the financial position and changes to the financial position for the
City as a whole as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009.

Net Assets

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The following table
reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets for the City for June 30, 2009 compared to the prior year.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets

(in Millions)
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
Current and other assets $120.5 $142.7 $29.7 $39.7 $150.2 $182.4
Capital assets 156.1 144.0 49.0 47.9 205.1 191.9
Total assets 276.6 286.7 78.7 87.6 355.3 374.3
Other liabilities 5.2 9.5 1.6 4.6 6.8 14.1
Long-term liabilities 19.5 17.6 17.4 22.1 36.9 39.7
Total liabilities 24.7 27.1 19.0 26.7 43.7 53.8
Net assets:
Invested Capital assets
net of related debt 144.5 166.6 33.2 42.8 177.7 209.4
Restricted 77.4 63.8 19.3 16.8 96.7 80.6
Unrestricted 29.9 29.2 7.2 1.2 37.1 30.4
Total net assets $251.8 $259.6 $59.7 $60.8 $311.5 $320.4
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The net assets of the City increased by $9 million from June 30, 2009. At year end June 30, 2009 the net assets of
the City totaled $320.4 million. Of this $320.4 million, $259.6 million was in the governmental activities, a 3%
increase and $60.8 million was in the business-type activities, a .1% increase.

Net Assets consist of three components. The largest portion of net assets ($209.4 million or 65%) reflects the City’s
investment in capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and any related outstanding debt used to acquire or
construct those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, it is not the
City’s intention to sell these assets and they are therefore not available for future spending.

The second portion of the City’s net assets ($80.6 million or 25%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. This component is primarily made up of accumulated development impact
fee collected by the City and funds are specifically reserved for capital improvements pertaining to growth as it
relates to maintaining a consistent level of service to all citizens.

The third portion consists of unrestricted net assets ($30.4 million or 9%), which may be used to meet the City’s
ongoing obligation to citizens and creditors.

Changes in Net Assets. The City’s total revenues for the year ended June 30, 2009 were $76,250,326. The total
cost of all programs and services was $67,278,160. The following table presents a summary of the changes in net
assets for the year ended June 30, 2009.

Changes in Net Assets
(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Revenues 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
Program revenues
Charges for services $14,470 $5,685 $11,950 $10,834 $26,420 $16,519
Operating grants and contributions 9,303 8,859 - - 9,303 8,859
Capital grants and contributions 22,403 7,361 2,581 717 24,984 8,078
General revenues
Property taxes 3,106 6,265 - - 3,106 6,265
Sales taxes 28,083 23,314 14 21 28,097 23,335
Franchise taxes 1,687 1,910 - - 1,687 1,910
Shared revenues 9,776 9,503 - - 9,776 9,503
Other 4,044 1,255 1,075 525 5,119 1,780
Total revenues 92,872 64,152 15,620 12,097 108,492 76,249
Expenses
General government 6,958 7,824 - - 6,958 7,824
Public safety 17,800 20,385 - - 17,800 20,385
Streets/Transportation 10,615 12,198 - - 10,615 12,198
Public works 1,653 2,337 - - 1,653 2,337
Culture and recreation 5,854 7,697 - - 5,854 7,697
Economic development 5,932 4,367 - - 5,932 4,367
Other 642 973 - - 642 973
Water - - 118 153 118 153
Golf course - - 968 1,267 968 1,267
Sewer - - 4,522 4,610 4522 4,610
Sanitation - - 4,041 5,466 4,041 5,466
Total expenses 49,454 55,781 9,649 11,496 59,103 67,277
Excess before transfer 43,418 8,371 5,971 601 49,389 8,972
Transfers In (Out) 526 (563) (526) 563 - -
Increase in Net Assets $43,944 $7,808 $5,445 $1,164 $49,389 $8,972
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The graph below shows the functional revenues and expenses of governmental activities to demonstrate the extent to
which the governmental functions produce direct revenues to offset the program costs. The expenses do not
represent full cost allocation to these functions. Expenses not covered by direct program revenues are covered by
general revenues of the City, primarily taxes and state shared revenues.

Governmental activities account for 84% of the total revenues of the City and 83% of the total expenses in fiscal
year 2009. This compares to 83% of total revenues and 80% of expenses in fiscal year 2008.

Governmental Programs Revenues and Expenses
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

The City maintains fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with budgetary and legal requirements. The
following is a brief discussion of financial highlights from the fund financial statements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of governmental fund financial statements (pages 15-27) is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources. All major governmental funds are discreetly presented on these
financial statements, while the non-major funds are combined into a single column. Combining statements for the
non-major funds may be found on pages 71-74.

For fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the governmental funds reflect a combined fund balance of $98.7 million, a
decrease of $17.2 million. A portion of the fund balance, $28.5 million is reserved for specific expenses or is legally
segregated for a specific future use. The remaining $70.2 million is classified as “Unreserved”. This balance may
serve as a useful indicator of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year.
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The following graph indicates fund balances for select governmental funds for the past two fiscal years.

Governmental Fund Balances
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The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City and accounts for many of the major functions of the
government, including public safety, parks and recreation, community development and general administrative
services. The General Fund revenues total $36 million, a decrease of $4.7 million, in fiscal year 2008-2009. The
primary decreases are in local sales tax, license and permits and investment earnings revenues. The expenses,
before other financing sources and uses, totaled $35.2 million, an increase of $1.9 million. The increase in fund
balance is because expenditures were less than revenues.

The Highway User Revenue Fund is required by state statute to track the state allocation of gasoline taxes and other
state revenues shared with local governments and must be used for transportation purposes. The City also accounts
for a half-cent sales tax that is collected and distributed by Pinal County for the purposes of construction and
improvements of major roadways within the City. Revenue in this fund totaled $5.0 million, a decrease of $1.4
million, while expenses totaled $5.0 million, a decrease of $.3 million in fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The
decrease in revenues is a result of a decrease in state funding and fewer investment earnings.

Another governmental fund of the City is the System Development Fee Fund which collects impact fees for public
safety, parks and recreational facilities, library facilities, and general government. The fund balance increase in this
fund to planned to finance capital improvements over the next several years.

The Capital Development and Replacement Fund accounts for accumulated proceeds and capital expense of those
proceeds for the construction of capital projects and for replacement of equipment. The fund balance decreased in
this fund due to spending of prior year bond proceeds.
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Other governmental funds include the Grants Fund which accounts for the various state and federal grants awarded
to the City for specific purposes and services in public safety, parks and recreation, and library; the CDBG, Self
Help, and Home Funds provides a variety of housing and neighborhood improvements services ranging from
housing rehab to infrastructure improvements; the Special Assessment Fund collects special assessments levied
through improvement districts and services the debt on the improvement district bond; the CFD Capital Projects
Fund accounts for capital construction within the CFD; all non-major governmental funds of the City are combined
into the “Other Governmental Funds” column on the governmental fund statements.

Proprietary Funds

The proprietary funds financial statements are prepared on the same accounting basis and measurement focus as the
government-wide financial statements, but provide additional detail since each major enterprise fund is shown
individually on the fund statement.

Net assets of the enterprise funds were $60.8 million, an increase of $1.1 million as of June 30, 2009. This increase
is largely due to the increase in donations of capital assets (which do not result in spendable resources). Operating
revenues in fiscal year 2008-2009 were $11.0 million, a decrease of $1 million from the prior fiscal year, while
operating expenses totaled $10.8 million, an increase of $1.8 million, resulting in $223,753 of operating income.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City’s annual budget is the legally adopted expenditure control document of the City. A statement showing the
budget amounts for the general fund is provided as required supplementary information on page 21. This statement
compares the original adopted budget, the budget as amended throughout the fiscal year, and the actual expenditures
prepared on a budgetary basis.

Amendments to the adopted budget may occur throughout the year in a legally permissible manner (see Note 1 (F)
on page 45 for more information on budget policies). Use of contingency is required for capital projects with budget
overages, and other unanticipated expenses. Budget amendments are processed to provide expenditure authority
from unanticipated revenue sources. These include new or increased grants and intergovernmental agreements. It is
generally the policy of the City to not include revenues and operational expenditure authority for these types of
items in the operational budgets unless the funding is reasonably assured at the time of completion of the annual
budget. Instead, the City budgets contingency accounts to allow for later transfer to operational budgets when the
funding is received.

The City’s total adopted budget was $140,854,700 during fiscal year 2009. Budget amendments between funds or
departments or from budgeted contingencies into operational expense/expenditure accounts did occur. However, the
adopted budget can not be increased.

General Fund inflows (revenues and other sources) of $36 million, on a budgetary basis, were less than budgeted
inflows of $37.3 million by $1.3 million (3.4%) while actual outflows (expenditures and other uses) of $35.2 million
were only 88% of final budgeted outflows. The decrease in General Fund inflows over budgeted amounts is
primarily due to lower sales tax collections and investment earnings yield. Reduced General Fund outflows resulted
primarily from a mid year budget reduction based on anticipated decline in revenues.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2009, the City had $209 million invested in various capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and related debt, up $48.9 million. Of the $31.8 million $166.7 million (80%) is invested in governmental activities
and $42.8 million (20%) is invested in business-type activities.

Major additions to capital assets during the fiscal year include the following:

v/ Began construction of wastewater treatment plant expansion and renovation - work in progress amounted to
$8,698,555.

Sanitation equipment - $1,697,899

Began construction of Cottonwood lane widening - $5,090,652

Began construction of sports complex - $7,442,212

ANRNEN

The following table provides a breakdown of the capital asset balances net of accumulated depreciation at June 30,
2009. Additional information on the City’s capital assets may be found in Note 7 on pages 54-56.

Capital Assets
(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
Land & Const. in progress $ 13,089 $ 33,045 $ 3,734 $14,416 $ 16,823 $ 47,461
Building and improvements 134,080 134,300 42,118 42,944 176,198 177,244
Machines and equipment 8,915 9,662 3,093 4,989 12,008 14,651
Total $156,084 $177,007 $48,945 $62,349 $205,029 $239,356

Long-Term Debt

The City’s outstanding long-term debt, including bonds, notes, contracts, and compensated absences, was $37.2
million at June 30, 2009, with $5.7 million due within one year. Of this total, $17.6 million was in governmental
activities and $19.6 million was in business-type activities. Of the outstanding debt, $16 million is excise tax
revenue obligation bond collateralized by the City’s excise tax stream. An additional $130,000 is special assessment
bonds where the City is contingently liable in the event that the assessment revenue is insufficient to pay the debt
payments. All other outstanding debt is secured by pledges of specific revenue sources of the City.

The following schedule shows the outstanding debt of the City (both current and long term) as of June 30, 2009.
Further details can be found in Notes 10 to 15 on pages 61-67.

10
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Outstanding Debt
(In Thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009
Compensated absences $ 881 $ 1,615 $ 112 $ 241 $ 993 $ 1,856
Capital leases 3,180 2,909 179 58 3,359 2,967
Bonds payable 17,229 13,000 15,856 14,575 33,085 27,575
Notes/loans payable - - 149 4,352 149 4,352

Total $21,290 $17,524 $16,296 $19,226 $37,586 $36,750

ECONOMIC FACTORS

Casa Grande’s population has grown steadily since 2000. The growth rate over the course of the past 8 years was
79% and is expected to be 2% in 2010. The unemployment rate in Casa Grande for June 2009 was 11.1%, which is
higher than the state (8.7%) and higher than the national average (9.5%). While the local economy witnessed a solid
year, it has been largely driven by commercial construction. The retail sales tax remained stable due to the regional
nature of Casa Grande.

Arizona cities remain dependent on sales taxes and other economically sensitive tax revenues and are susceptible to
slowdowns in the economy. The regional economy is slowing further due to sluggish building activity in both
residential and commercial. Population growth continues to be steady as does personal income. Within Casa
Grande, the local economy is experiencing a temporary reduction in sales tax collection as the economy starts to
improve. Casa Grande continues to be a potential site for industrial and manufacturing companies.

Total assessed value in Casa Grande has increased progressively, showing a 326% overall increase from 2000 to
2009. This is due to the new housing development followed by commercial development. Residential value in 2009
represented about 43% of the total.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Casa Grande, Arizona’s finances and
to demonstrate accountability for the use of public funds. Questions about any of the information provided in this
report, or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City’s Finance Director at the following
address: City of Casa Grande, 510 E. Florence Blvd. Casa Grande, AZ 85122 or send an e-mail to
darcher@casagrandeaz.gov.
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2009

ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Due from other governments
Inventories
Restricted assets:
Restricted investments
Deferred bond costs
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation)
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Deposits held
Accrued wages and benefits
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Current portion of compensated absences
Current portion of capital leases and notes
Current portion of excise tax revenue obligations
Current portion of bonds payable
Due in more than one year:
Noncurrent portion of capital leases
Noncurrent portion of notes payable
Noncurrent portion of excise tax revenue obligations
Noncurrent portion of bonds payable
Less: Deferred amount on refunding
Closure and postclosure liability
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Highways and streets
Grant purposes
Community development
Debt service
Capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 12,586,951 898,927 13,485,878
83,259,396 23,077,964 106,337,360
5,763,202 810,934 6,574,136
1,707,646 - 1,707,646
298,569 12,918 311,487
5,645,706 126,594 5,772,300
417,869 293,311 711,180
33,044,947 14,416,023 47,460,970
143,961,817 47,933,163 191,894,980
286,686,103 87,569,834 374,255,937
8,881,621 4,391,464 13,273,085
- 14,590 14,590
539,909 77,918 617,827
53,072 179,548 232,620
12,797 - 12,797
1,614,897 241,151 1,856,048
284,693 1,318,954 1,603,647
250,530 569,470 820,000
1,217,271 222,730 1,440,001
2,624,468 6,793 2,631,261
- 3,084,355 3,084,355
2,886,381 13,043,058 15,929,439
8,722,861 1,409,553 10,132,414
(32,410) (165,985) (198,395)
- 2,354,385 2,354,385
27,056,090 26,747,984 53,804,074
166,666,266 42,819,605 209,485,871
9,199,034 - 9,199,034
1,030,111 - 1,030,111
34,164,700 - 34,164,700
421,125 - 421,125
18,944,766 16,814,023 35,758,789
29,204,011 1,188,222 30,392,233
$259,630,013 $60,821,850 $320,451,863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions ~ Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 7,824,380 $ 131,394 $ 2,743 $ -
Public safety 20,384,692 1,410,573 773,853 153,120
Streets/Transportation 12,198,334 1,297,796 4,977,054 6,273,834
Public works 2,336,854 23,399 21,000 -
Culture and recreation 7,696,876 378,961 431,892 933,907
Economic development 4,367,403 2,442,985 2,652,632 -
Interest on long-term debt 972,791 - - -
Total governmental activities 55,781,330 5,685,108 8,859,174 7,360,861
Business-type activities:
Water 153,147 196,410 - -
Golf course 1,266,986 962,206 - -
Wastewater 4,610,789 5,119,786 - 717,407
Sanitation 5,465,908 4,555,927 - -
Total business-type activities 11,496,830 10,834,329 - 717,407
Total primary government $67,278,160 $16,519,437 $8,859,174 $8,078,268

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Shared revenues - unrestricted:
State sales taxes
Urban revenue sharing
Auto-in-lieu
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers in (out)
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
Net assets-beginning
Net assets-ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities

Total

$ (7,690,243)
(18,047,146)
350,350
(2,292,455)
(5,952,116)
728,214
(972,791)

$ (7,690,243)
(18,047,146)
350,350
(2,292,455)
(5,952,116)
728,214
(972,791)

(33,876,187)

(33,876,187)

- 43,263 43,263
- (304,780) (304,780)
- 1,226,404 1,226,404
- (909,981) (909,981)
- 54,906 54,906
($33,876,187) $54,906 ($33,821,281)
6,264,879 - 6,264,879
23,313,628 20,612 23,334,240
1,910,594 - 1,910,594
2,583,416 - 2,583,416
4,793,336 - 4,793,336
2,126,092 - 2,126,092
815,213 202,016 1,017,229
440,101 323,560 763,661
(563,426) 563,426 -
41,683,833 1,109,614 42,793,447
7,807,646 1,164,520 8,072,166
251,822,367 59,657,330 311,479,697
$259,630,013 $60,821,850 $320,451,863
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2009

Highway System Grants &
ASSETS General Users Development  Subsidies CDBG
Cash $ 12,218,996 $ 1,712 % - $ 922 % 632
Investments 15,347,696 8,579,056 28,621,800 - -
Accounts receivable (less allowance
for uncollectibles) 4,436,083 568,308 26,441 103 486,836
Due from other governments 24,853 - - 614,789 102,937
Due from other funds 3,488,500 - - - -
Inventories 14,852 - - - -
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - -
Total assets $35,530,980 $9,149,076 $28,648,241 $615,814 $590,405
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and
other current liabilities $ 1,287,357 $ 267,215 $ 1601467 $ 54588 $ 58,912
Liabilities payable from restricted assets - - - - -
Accrued wages and benefits 458,012 27,244 - 14,914 -
Due to other funds - - - 345,000 64,000
Deferred revenue 224,820 - - 536,715 12,000
Compensated absences 4,290 75 - - -
Total liabilities 1,974,479 294,534 1,601,467 951,217 134,912
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Court and development 3,153,554 - - - -
Special revenue - - - - 455,493
Debt service - - - - -
Capital projects - - - - -
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund 30,402,947 - - - -
Special revenue funds - 8,854,542 27,046,774 (335,403) -
Capital projects funds - - - - -
Total fund balances 33,556,501 8,854,542 27,046,774 (335,403) 455,493
Total liabilities and fund balances  $35,530,980 $9,149,076 $28,648,241 $615,814 $590,405

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Self-help General Obligation Capital Community Other Total
Technical /Special Replacement/ Facilities Districts Governmental Governmental

Assistance Home/HUD  Assessments Development  Capital Projects Funds Funds
$ 511 $ 2,226 $ 129,700 $ 6,201 $ 73,013 $ 115,416 $ 12,549,329
- - 250,814 26,271,881 - 4,188,149 83,259,396
- - 12,035 172,339 2,115 58,942 5,763,202
73,354 257,774 51,132 414,258 - 168,549 1,707,646
- - - - - - 3,488,500
- - - - - 33,886 48,738
- - - 5,367,788 277,918 - 5,645,706
$73,865 $260,000 $443,681 $32,232,467 $353,046 $4,564,942 $112,462,517
$ 419 % - $ - $ 5278970 $ 997 % 87,975 $ 8,637,900
- - - 188,904 - - 188,904
3,904 - - - - 2,772 506,846
63,000 260,000 - 2,740,000 16,500 3,488,500
- 18,589 11,428 - - 145,255 948,807
- - - - - - 4,365
67,323 278,589 11,428 8,207,874 997 252,502 13,775,322
- - - - - - 3,153,554
- - - - - 32,899 488,392
- - 432,253 - - 30,516 462,769
- - - 24,024,593 352,049 - 24,376,642
- - - - - - 30,402,947
6,542 (18,589) - - - 4,240,941 39,794,807
- - - 8,084 8,084
6,542 (18,589) 432,253 24,024,593 352,049 4,312,440 98,687,195
$73,865 $260,000 $443,681 $32,232,467 $353,046 $4,564,942 $112,462,517
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2009

Fund balance - total governmental funds balance sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.
Governmental capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Internal service capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Compensated absences
Capital leases
Bonds payable
Bond issuance costs
Bond discount
Deferred Loss
Bond premium

Deferred revenue is shown on the governmental funds, but is not
deferred on the statement of net assets.

Special Assessments

Property Tax

Grant Revenue

Interest payable on long-term debt is not reported in the
governmental funds.
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of certain activities to individual funds.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds (excluding

capital assets) are reported with governmental activities.

Net assets of governmental activities - statement of net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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$98,687,195

254,122,437
(77,255,284)
376,958

(237,347)

177,006,764

(1,614,897)

(2,909,161)

(12,999,867)
417,869
43,594
32,410

(120,770)

(17,150,822)

11,428

211,340

712,559
935,327

(53,072)

204,621

$259,630,013
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Highway System Grants &
REVENUES General Users Development Subsidies CDBG
Taxes:
Property taxes $ 2,498,021 $ - $ - $ - -
City sales tax 18,414,310 - - -
Franchise tax 2,028,576 - - -
Licenses and permits 808,414 - - - -
Intergovernmental revenues 9,538,882 4,977,054 - 1,253,672 230,266
Charges for services 768,617 1,322,296 -
Fines 1,092,331 - -
Special assessments - - - - -
Investment earnings 228,023 62,668 246,266 490 -
Contributions and donations 2,500 - - 4,309 -
Rental and sale of city property 258,365 - - -
Miscellaneous 393,243 9,459 - - 26,258
Total revenues 36,031,282 5,049,181 1,568,562 1,258,471 256,524
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 7,587,337 - - -
Public safety 17,954,665 - - 619,430 -
Streets/Transportation - 2,991,139 -
Public works 1,716,458 - - - -
Culture and recreation 4,328,763 62,423 277,214 503,604 -
Planning and economic development 2,125,526 - - 230,689 357,090
Capital outlay 1,254,533 1,787,264 11,156,659 403,319 -
Debt Service:
Bond issuance costs - - - -
Principal 213,703 93,865 - -
Interest and fiscal charges 32,538 78,754 - - -
Total expenditures 35,213,523 5,013,445 11,433,873 1,757,042 357,090
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 817,759 35,736 (9,865,311) (498,571)  (100,566)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,727,297 749,176 - 184,005
Transfers out (2,109,149) (714,257) (404,085) - -
Bond issuance - - - - -
Grade separations settlement - - -
Bond discount - - - - -
Total other financing sources and uses (381,852) 34,919 (404,085) 184,005 -
Net change in fund balances 435,907 70,655 (10,269,396) (314,566)  (100,566)
Fund balances - beginning of year 33,120,594 8,783,887 37,316,170 (20,837) 556,059
Fund balances - end of year $33,556,501 $8,854,542 $27,046,774 ($335,403)  $455,493

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Self-help General Obligation/ Capital Community Other Total
Technical Special Replacement/  Facilities Districts ~ Governmental Governmental
Assistance Home/HUD Assessments Development Capital Projects Funds Funds
$ - $ - $ 2,809,580 $ - $ 346,968 337,491 5,992,060

- - - 4,090,866 - 808,452 23,313,628

- - - - - - 2,028,576

- - - - 808,414
224,099 753,870 - - 210,303 17,188,146
- - - 14,500 83,053 2,188,466

- - - - - 1,092,331

- 21,092 - - - 21,092

- 5,534 223,089 381 48,762 815,213

- - - - - 6,809

- - 58,392 - 1,328,478 1,645,235
10,660 - - - 21,000 68,775 529,395
234,759 753,870 2,836,206 4,372,347 382,849 2,885,314 55,629,365
- - - - 1,408,696 8,996,033

- - - - - 19,927 18,594,022

- - - - - - 2,991,139

- - - - - - 1,716,458

- - - - 50,715 5,222,719
152,028 493,361 1,473 501 44,339 20,830 3,425,837
- - - 11,661,029 639,000 610,098 27,511,902

- - 58,735 - 58,735

- 1,900,500 - - 3,105,753 5,313,821

- - 478,475 - 106,623 258,817 955,207
152,028 493,361 2,380,448 11,661,530 848,697 5,474,836 74,785,873
82,731 260,509 455,758 (7,289,183) (465,848) (2,589,522) (19,156,508)
- - 2,635,319 - 335,000 5,630,797

- (1,143,677) (1,284,222) - (267,534) (5,922,924)

- - - 750,000 - 750,000

- - - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000

- - - - (45,000) - (45,000)

- - (1,143,677) 2,851,097 705,000 67,466 1,912,873
82,731 260,509 (687,919) (4,438,086) 239,152 (2,522,056) (17,243,635)
(76,189) (279,098) 1,120,172 28,462,679 112,897 6,834,496 115,930,830
$ 6,542 ($18,589) $432,253 $24,024,593 $352,049 $4,312,440 $98,687,195
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds ($17,243,635)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Expenditures for capital assets

Less current year depreciation

24,992,995
(10,874,978)
14,118,017
The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net assets.
Contributed capital assets
Sale of capital assets

6,936,401
(107,722)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the fund statements.

Deferred property tax 154,837
Bond issuance costs are expended in the governmental funds when paid, and are
capitalized and amortized in the statement of net assets. This is the amount of
current year bond issuance costs and bond discount . 103,735
The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net assets.

Issuance of bond debt
Bond payments
Lease payments

(750,000)
4,979,351

271,195

4,500,546
Certain revenues in the governmental funds that provide current financial
resources are not included in the statement of activities because they were
recognized in a prior period. However, other revenues that are deferred
in the governmental funds because they do not provide current financial resources
due to unavailability are recognized in the statement of activities.
Special assessments (16,160)
Grants 22,965

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds.
Compensated absences (734,544)
Interest expense on long-term debt 73,206

Change in net assets of governmental activities $7,807,646

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
REVENUES Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Taxes:
Property taxes $ 2,566,600 $ 2,566,600 $ 2,498,021 $ (68,579)
City sales tax 19,550,000 19,550,000 18,414,310 (1,135,690)
Franchise tax 1,560,000 1,560,000 2,028,576 468,576
Licenses and permits 751,000 751,000 808,414 57,414
Intergovernmental revenues 9,423,400 9,423,400 9,538,882 115,482
Charges for services 1,516,100 1,516,100 768,617 (747,483)
Fines 824,000 824,000 1,092,331 268,331
Investment earnings 745,000 745,000 228,023 (516,977)
Contributions and donations - - 2,500 2,500
Rental and sale of city property 168,000 168,000 258,365 90,365
Miscellaneous 155,600 155,600 393,243 237,643
Total revenues 37,259,700 37,259,700 36,031,282 (1,228,418)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Mayor and Council 3,821,300 2,926,980 1,800,610 1,126,370
City manager 766,100 736,100 734,370 1,730
Attorney 610,500 596,820 596,033 787
Clerk 418,800 446,200 444,963
Finance 1,193,100 1,026,990 1,016,513 10,477
Information Technology 1,741,500 1,511,500 1,503,531 7,969
Administrative Services 1,728,800 1,644,500 1,491,317 153,183
Public safety
Police 11,432,400 11,330,800 11,259,498 71,302
Fire 5,943,700 5,930,100 5,927,186 2,914
Court 592,700 523,520 491,196 32,324
Animal Control 278,300 278,300 276,785 1,515
Public works 2,087,300 1,738,640 1,716,458 22,182
Culture and Recreation 4,948,900 4,360,360 4,328,763 31,597
Planning and Economic Development 2,599,600 2,248,610 2,125,526 123,084
Capital Outlay 4,533,100 4,365,400 1,254,533 3,110,867
Debt Service:
Principal 94,600 217,062 213,703 3,359
Interest and fiscal charges - 32,538 32,538 -
Total expenditures 42,790,700 39,914,420 35,213,523 4,700,897
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (5,531,000) (2,654,720) 817,759 3,472,479
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,564,700 1,564,700 1,727,297 162,597
Transfers out (1,991,500) (2,109,500) (2,109,149) 351
Total other financing sources and uses (426,800) (544,800) (381,852) 162,948
Net change in fund balance (5,957,800) (3,199,520) 435,907 3,635,427
Fund balance - beginning of year 5,957,800 3,199,520 33,120,594 29,921,074
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $33,556,501 $33,556,501

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Highway Users Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
REVENUES Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Taxes:
State-shared gas tax $ 2,919,200 $ 2,919,200 $ 2,639,907 $ (279,293)
Local transportation assistance 188,800 188,800 255,745 66,945
County sales tax 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,081,402 81,402
Investment earnings 400,000 400,000 62,668 (337,332)
Miscellaneous 220,000 220,000 9,459 (210,541)
Total revenues 5,728,000 5,728,000 5,049,181 (678,819)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation
Contractual services 25,000 63,000 62,423 577
Total Culture and recreation 25,000 63,000 62,423 577
Streets/Transportation
Personal services 1,504,600 1,504,600 1,268,830 235,770
Contractual services 839,600 724,600 322,128 402,472
Materials and supplies 1,570,400 1,570,400 1,400,181 170,219
Capital outlay 2,794,000 2,044,000 1,787,264 256,736
Debt service 178,300 178,300 172,619 5,681
Total Streets/Transportation 6,886,900 6,021,900 4,951,022 1,070,878
Total expenditures 6,911,900 6,084,900 5,013,445 1,071,455
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,183,900) (356,900) 35,736 392,636
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 749,176 749,176
Transfers out (637,900) (714,900) (714,257) 643
Total other financing sources and uses (637,900) (714,900) 34,919 749,819
Net change in fund balance (1,821,800) (1,071,800) 70,655 1,142,455
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,821,800 1,071,800 8,783,887 7,712,087
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $8,854,542 $8,854,542

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
System Development Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
REVENUES Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Charges for services $9,789,000 $9,789,000 $1,322,296 ($8,466,704)
Investment earnings 1,400,000 1,400,000 246,266 (1,153,734)
Total revenues 11,189,000 11,189,000 1,568,562 (9,620,438)
EXPENDITURES
Public works 21,000 21,000 - 21,000
Culture and recreation 80,000 360,000 277,214 82,786
Capital outlay 22,229,600 21,919,600 11,156,659 10,762,941
Total expenditures 22,330,600 22,300,600 11,433,873 10,866,727
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (11,141,600) (11,111,600) (9,865,311) 1,246,289
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (375,000) (405,000) (404,085) 915
Total other financing sources and uses (375,000) (405,000) (404,085) 915
Net change in fund balance (11,516,600) (11,516,600) (10,269,396) 1,247,204
Fund balance - beginning of year 11,516,600 11,516,600 37,316,170 25,799,570
Fund balance - end of year - $ - $27,046,774 $27,046,774

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Grants and Subsidies Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009
Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
REVENUES Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Intergovernmental revenues $3,904,000 $3,904,000 $1,253,672 ($2,650,328)
Investment earnings 1,500 1,500 490 (1,010)
Contributions and donations 26,500 26,500 4,309 (22,191)
Total revenues 3,932,000 3,932,000 1,258,471 (2,673,529)
EXPENDITURES
Public safety
Personal services 282,100 547,100 545,951 1,149
Contractual services 6,000 7,100 7,061 39
Materials and supplies 1,169,100 626,000 66,418 559,582
Capital outlay - 277,000 276,651 349
Total Public Safety 1,457,200 1,457,200 896,081 561,119
Culture and recreation
Personal services 243,100 243,100 106,295 136,805
Contractual services 50,800 100,800 100,678 122
Materials and supplies 175,900 297,900 296,631 1,269
Capital outlay 225,000 175,000 126,668 48,332
Total Culture and Recreation 694,800 816,800 630,272 186,528
Community Development
Contractual services 1,780,000 1,658,000 230,689 1,427,311
Total Community Development 1,780,000 1,658,000 230,689 1,427,311
Total expenditures 3,932,000 3,932,000 1,757,042 2,174,958
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - (498,571) (498,571)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in - - 184,005 184,005
Total other financing sources and uses - - 184,005 184,005
Net change in fund balance - - (314,566) (314,566)
Fund balance - beginning of year - - (20,837) (20,837)
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - ($335,403) ($335,403)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
REVENUES Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Intergovernmental revenues $928,000 $928,000 $230,266 ($697,734)
Program income - - 26,258 26,258
Total revenues 928,000 928,000 256,524 (671,476)
EXPENDITURES
Community development
Personal services - 90,000 87,719 2,281
Contractual services 928,000 830,000 261,729 568,271
Materials and supplies - 8,000 7,642 358
Total expenditures 928,000 928,000 357,090 570,910
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - (100,566) (100,566)
Fund balance - beginning of year - - 556,059 556,059
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $455,493 $455,493

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Self-Help Technical Assistance Special Revenue Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
REVENUES Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Intergovernmental revenues $430,000 $430,000 $224,099 ($205,901)
Miscellaneous 7,000 7,000 10,660 3,660
Total revenues 437,000 437,000 234,759 (202,241)
EXPENDITURES
Community development
Personal services 345,500 345,500 109,153 236,347
Contractual services 60,900 60,900 40,850 20,050
Materials and supplies 30,600 30,600 2,025 28,575
Total expenditures 437,000 437,000 152,028 284,972
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 82,731 82,731
Fund balance - beginning of year - - (76,189) (76,189)
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 6,542 $ 6,542

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Home/HUD Special Revenue Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive

REVENUES Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
Intergovernmental revenues $1,395,000 $1,075,000 $753,870 ($321,130)

Total revenues 1,395,000 1,075,000 753,870 (321,130)
EXPENDITURES
Community development

Personal services 26,500 90,500 88,597 1,903

Contractual services 1,368,500 984,200 404,500 579,700

Materials and supplies - 300 264 36

Total expenditures 1,395,000 1,075,000 493,361 581,639

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 260,509 260,509

Fund balance - beginning of year - - (279,098) (279,098)
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - ($18,589) ($18,589)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash
Cash with fiscal agent
Investments
Receivables, net of uncollectibles
Restricted assets - investments
Inventories

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Deferred bond costs
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Deposits held

Accrued wages and benefits

Accrued interest payable

Compensated absences

Capital leases

Notes payable

GO Bond/Excise tax revenue obligations
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Capital leases

Notes payable

General obligation bond

Excise tax revenue obligations

Deferred amount on refunding

Closure and postclosure liability
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Construction

Unrestricted

Total net assets

State
Pr

ment of Net Assets
oprietary Funds
June 30, 2009

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Wastewater
Water Wastewater Dev Fees
$ 862,390 $ 6,332 -
- 1,262 -
- 5,393,172 16,280,165
21,067 349,129 13,892
883,457 5,749,895 16,294,057
- 259,817 -
- - 2,700,724
1,036,504 53,297,643 -

- 1,296,777 634,198

- 10,418,628 1,013,671
(379,457) (13,590,842) (6,594)
657,047 51,422,207 4,341,999
657,047 51,682,024 4,341,999

1,540,504 57,431,919 20,636,056
2,595 3,889,237 265,037
14,590 - -
1,273 15,704 -
2,724 176,824 -
- 59,332 -
10,567 1,257,390 -
- 569,470 -
31,749 5,967,957 265,037
127,860 2,956,495 -

- 13,043,058 -

- (165,985) -
127,860 15,833,568 -
159,609 21,801,525 265,037
518,620 33,595,794 4,341,999

- 1,262 16,029,020
862,275 2,033,338 -

$1,380,895 $35,630,394 $20,371,019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Governmental
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities -
Internal
Sanitation Golf Course Total Service Funds
$ 25,538 3,405 897,665 37,622

- - 1,262 -

1,297,861 108,028 23,079,226 -
424,689 2,157 810,934 -

- 125,332 125,332 -

- 12,918 12,918 249,831
1,748,088 251,840 24,927,337 287,453

- 33,494 293,311 -

- 283,000 2,983,724 -

138,496 2,378,830 56,851,473 52,354
5,803,190 494,993 8,229,158 324,604

- - 11,432,299 -
(2,340,872) (829,704) (17,147,468) (237,347)
3,600,814 2,327,119 62,349,186 139,611
3,600,814 2,360,613 62,642,497 139,611
5,348,902 2,612,453 87,569,834 427,064

200,223 34,372 4,391,464 54,141

- - 14,590 -

53,212 7,729 77,918 11,442
- - 179,548 -
156,876 24,943 241,151 17,249
50,997 - 50,997 -
- - 1,267,957 -
- 222,730 792,200 -
461,308 289,774 7,015,825 82,832
6,793 - 6,793 -

- - 3,084,355 -

- 1,409,553 1,409,553 -

- - 13,043,058 -

- - (165,985) -
2,354,385 - 2,354,385 -
2,361,178 1,409,553 19,732,159 -
2,822,486 1,699,327 26,747,984 82,832
3,543,024 820,168 42,819,605 -

- 783,741 16,814,023 -
(1,016,608) (690,783) 1,188,222 344,232

$2,526,416 $913,126 $60,821,850 $344,232
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Wastewater
Water Wastewater Dev Fees
Operating revenues:
Service fees $ 184,410  $ 3,933,465 -
Connection fees 12,000 20,075 1,166,246

Rental - - -
Green fees - - -
Impact fees - - -
Miscellaneous - 20,081 -

Total operating revenue 196,410 3,973,621 1,166,246
Operating expenses:

Personal services 50,623 784,032 -
Contractual services 9,174 586,678 -
Materials and supplies 43,874 812,071 -
Depreciation 44,540 1,773,381 3,588
Closure and postclosure costs - - -

Total operating expenses 148,211 3,956,162 3,588
Operating income (loss) 48,199 17,459 1,162,658
Nonoperating revenues (expense):

Gain on sale of assets - - -
Investment earnings - 46,126 135,823
Interest expense (4,936) (651,039) -
City sales tax - - -

Total nonoperating revenues (expense) (4,936) (604,913) 135,823
Income (loss) before contributions and
transfers 43,263 (587,454) 1,298,481
Capital contributions - 717,407 -
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (27,400) (175,548) -
Change in net assets 15,863 (45,595) 1,298,481
Total net assets-beginning of year 1,365,032 35,675,989 19,072,538
Total net assets-end of year $1,380,895 $35,630,394 $20,371,019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Governmental
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities -
Internal
Sanitation Golf Course Total Service Funds

$4,326,086 - $8,443,961 $1,582,398

146,581 - 1,344,902 -

- 122,626 122,626 -

- 839,250 839,250 -

83,260 - 83,260

15,046 190,163 225,290 -
4,570,973 1,152,039 11,059,289 1,582,398
2,541,812 513,556 3,890,023 504,318
997,426 127,199 1,720,477 136,370
925,376 515,120 2,296,440 642,578
421,551 111,111 2,354,172 27,831

574,424 - 574,424 -
5,460,589 1,266,986 10,835,536 1,311,097
(889,616) (114,947) 223,753 271,301

98,600 - 98,600 -

20,067 - 202,016 -

(5,319) - (661,294) -

- 20,612 20,612 -

113,348 20,612 (340,066) -
(776,268) (94,335) (116,313) 271,301

- - 717,407 -

1,284,222 694,500 1,978,722 -
(1,083,848) (128,500) (1,415,296) (271,301)

(575,894) 471,665 1,164,520 -
3,102,310 441,461 59,657,330 344,232
$2,526,416 $913,126 $60,821,850 $344,232
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Wastewater
Water Wastewater Dev Fees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $193,475 $3,675,743 $1,223,745
Payments to suppliers (61,176) (1,413,363) -
Payments to employees (49,350) (751,360) -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 82,949 1,511,020 1,223,745
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
City sales tax - - -
Transfers to other funds (27,400) (175,548) -
Transfers from other funds - - -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities (27,400) (175,548) -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 4,848 -
Purchases of capital assets - (5,150,801) (3,690,675)
Proceeds from capital debt 4,213,836
Principal paid on capital debt (10,217) (551,100) -
Interest paid on capital debt (4,936) (626,819) -
Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities (15,153) (2,110,036) (3,690,675)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends received - 60,296 135,823
Net cash provided by investing
activities - 60,296 135,823
Net increase (decrease) in cash 40,396 (714,268) (2,331,107)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 821,994 6,115,034 18,611,272
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 862,390 $ 5,400,766 $ 16,280,165
Cash $ 862,390 $ 6,332 $ -
Cash with fiscal agent - 1,262 -
Investments - 5,393,172 16,280,165
$862,390 $5,400,766 $16,280,165

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial
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Governmental
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities -
Internal
Sanitation Golf Course Total Service Fund
$4,209,370 $1,156,220 $10,458,553 $1,582,398
(1,801,300) (752,976) (4,028,815) (796,605)
(2,447,425) (501,731) (3,749,866) (496,634)
(39,355) (98,487) 2,679,872 289,159
- 20,612 20,612 -
(1,083,848) (128,500) (1,415,296) (271,301)
1,284,222 694,500 1,978,722 -
200,374 586,612 584,038 (271,301)
169,868 9,121 183,837
(1,697,899) (669,345) (11,208,720) (4,236)
4,213,836
(121,333) (394,500) (1,077,150) -
(5,319) - (637,074) -
(1,654,683) (1,054,724) (8,525,271) (4,236)
20,068 - 216,187 -
20,068 - 216,187 -
(1,473,596) (566,599) (5,045,174) 13,622
2,796,995 803,364 29,148,659 24,000
$ 1,323,399 236,765 $ 24,103,485 $ 37,622
$ 25,538 3,405 $ 897,665 $ 37,622
- - 1,262 -
1,297,861 233,360 23,204,558 -
$1,323,399 $236,765 $24,103,485 $37,622

33



To Table of Contents

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating

City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

income (loss) to net cash provided (used)

by operating activities:

Closure and postclosure costs

Depreciation expense

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in inventory

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in deposits held

Increase (decrease) in accrued wages

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing

activities:

Contributions of capital assets

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Wastewater

Water Wastewater Dev Fees
$ 48,199  $ 17,459  $ 1,162,658
44,540 1,773,381 3,588
(2,700) (297,878) 57,499

(8,128) (14,614) -

(235) - -

1,273 1,436 -

- 31,236 -
34,750 1,493,561 61,087
$ 82,949 $ 1,511,020 $ 1,223,745

- $717,407 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Governmental
Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Activities -
Internal
Sanitation Golf Course Total Service Fund
$ (889,616) (114,947) 223,753 $ 271,301
574,424 - 574,424 -
421,551 111,111 2,354,171 27,831
(361,603) 4,181 (600,501) -
- (3,035) (3,035) 34,270
121,502 (107,622) (8,862) (51,927)
- - (235) -
8,093 447 11,249 2,870
86,294 11,378 128,908 4,814
850,261 16,460 2,456,119 17,858
$ (39,355) (98,487) 2,679,872 $ 289,159
- - $717,407
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

ASSETS
Cash
Interest receivable
Investments, at fair value
Money market
Mutual funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

Held in trust for pension benefits and
other purposes

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2009

Agency Funds

19,407
1,412

1,767,554

Part-Time
Firemen's Pension

1,788,373

1,788,373

1,788,373

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Part-Time
Firemen's Pension
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ -

Plan members -

Total contributions -

Investment earnings:

Interest 16,885
Change in the fair value of investments (152,550)
Total investment earnings (135,665)
Less investment expense (3,638)
Net investment earnings (139,303)
Total additions (139,303)

DEDUCTIONS

Pension payments 45,465
Administrative expenses 1,618
Total deductions 47,083
Change in net assets (186,386)

Net assets-beginning of year 716,196
Net assets-end of year $ 529,810

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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NOTE 1:

CITY OF CASA GRANDE, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the City conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary
of the City’s significant accounting policies:

(A) Reporting Entity

(B)

The reporting entity of the City includes the following services as authorized by its charter:
general government, public safety (police, court and fire), streets/transportation, public works,
culture and recreation and economic development. In addition, the City owns and operates four
major enterprise activities: wastewater system, sanitation operations, golf course and water
system.

Individual Component Unit — Blended

The Mission Royale Community Facilities District, Villago Community Facilities District, Copper
Mountain Community Facilities District and Post Ranch Community Facilities District (the
Districts) were formed for the purpose of acquiring or constructing public infrastructure in
specified areas of the City. As special purpose districts and separate political subdivisions under
the Arizona Constitution, the Districts can levy taxes and issue bonds independently of the City.
Property owners in the designated areas are assessed for District taxes, and thus for the costs of
operating the Districts. The City Council serves as the Board of Directors; however, the City has
no liability for the District’s debt. For reporting purposes, the transactions of the Districts are
combined together and included as governmental type funds as if they were part of the City’s
operations.

No separate financial statements were prepared for the Districts.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and
its component units. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from Business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses for a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.

(continued)
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NOTE 1.

CITY OF CASA GRANDE, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(B)

(©)

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial
statements. Net interfund activity and balances between governmental activities and business-type
activities are shown in the government-wide financial statements. The *“doubling up” effect of
internal service fund activity has been removed from the government-wide statements with the
expenses shown in the various functions and segments on the Statement of Activities.

Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures
(expenses). The various funds are summarized by type in the combined financial statements. The
City uses the following fund types:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operation fund of the City. It is used to account
for all financial resources except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues derived

from specific taxes, grants or other restricted revenue sources. City Ordinances or Federal and

State Statutes specify the uses and limitations of each special revenue fund. The Special Revenue

Funds presented as major funds in the basic financial statement are as follows:

Highway Users Fund, used to account for the City’s share of tax revenues that are legally
restricted to the maintenance of highways within the City’s boundaries;

Systems Development Fund, used for fees collected to help defray the costs of development of
general government;

Grants and Subsidies Fund, used to account for various grants;

Community Development Block Grant Fund (CDBG), used to account for intergovernmental
grants, which are used to improve and develop neighborhoods by developing housing;

Self-help Technical Assistance Fund, used to account for the activity related to the Rural
Development Self-Help Technical Assistance Grant;

Home/HUD Fund, used to account for intergovernmental grants used to rehabilitate owner
occupied homes and to provide counseling services.

(continued)
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CITY OF CASA GRANDE, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

NOTE 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(C) Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting (continued)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for
and the payment of general obligation long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. The
General Obligation/Special Assessment Debt Service Fund is a major fund presented in the basic
financial statements. This fund accounts for the receipts of revenues from property taxes and
payment of the 2008 general obligation bonds and revenues from special assessment districts and
the payment of special assessment bonds.

Capital Project Funds - Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds and trust funds). The Capital Replacement Fund is a major fund presented in the basic
financial statements. This fund is used to account for the replacement of various capital items or
development of infrastructure. The Construction Sales Tax Capital account will use revenue from
construction sales tax for infrastructure. The Community Facilities Districts (CFD) Capital
Projects Fund accounts for capital construction activities within the CFDs.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing
body is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The enterprise funds presented as major
funds in the basic financial statement are as follows:

Water Fund - Used to account for water related activities.

Wastewater Fund — This fund is used to account for the activities of the sewer (wastewater)
operations and maintenance.

Wastewater Development Fees Fund — Fees collected to help defray the costs of development of
the wastewater system.

Sanitation Fund — This fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s trash and landfill
services.

Golf Course Fund — This fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s public golf course.

On the proprietary fund financial statements, operating revenues are those that flow directly from
the operations of that activity, i.e. charges to customers or users who purchase or use the goods or
services of that activity. Operating expenses are those that are incurred to provide those goods or
services. Non-operating revenues and expenses are items like investment income and interest
expense that are not a result of the direct operations of the activity.

(continued)
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CITY OF CASA GRANDE, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

NOTE 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(C) Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting (continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS (continued)

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City,
generally on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City has one internal services fund, Equipment
Mechanics. This fund is used to account for the maintenance and operations of City owned
vehicles.

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee or agency capacity on behalf of
others and therefore are not available to support City programs. The reporting focus is upon net
assets and changes in net assets and employs accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.
Fiduciary Funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements since they are not
assets of the City available to support City programs.

Pension Trust Funds are used to report resources that are required to be held in trust for the
members and beneficiaries of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, other post
employment benefit plans, or other employee benefit plans. The City has one Pension Trust Fund
to account for the activities of the part-time firemen’s pension plan.

Agency Funds account for assets the City holds as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments or other funds in a temporary custodial capacity. The City currently maintains
two agency funds, one to account for deposits received from various businesses in order to
conduct business within the City, and the other to account for employee deposits into a flexible
spending plan. The two agency funds are aggregated in the statements.

NON-CURRENT GOVERNMENTAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-Current Governmental Assets and Liabilities - GASB Statement #34 eliminates the
presentation of account groups in the financial statements (formerly the general fixed asset
account group and the general long-term debt account group). The governmental long-term assets
and liabilities continue to be maintained in a separate fund for tracking purposes, but are presented
with the governmental activities in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

(continued)
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NOTE 1:

CITY OF CASA GRANDE, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(D) Implementation of GASB Statement No.34

1. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34

In fiscal year 2002/2003 the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments. This statement affects the manner in which the City records transactions and
presents financial information. State and local governments have traditionally used a financial
reporting model substantially different from the one used to prepare private sector financial
reports. GASB Statement No. 34 establishes new requirements and a new reporting model for the
annual financial reports of state and local governments.

The statement was developed to make annual reports of state and local governments easier to
understand and more useful to the people who use governmental financial information to make
decisions and include the following sections, which were not previously included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Statements. The governmental fund financial statements
continue to be presented as a building block for the new GASB Statement No. 34 statements.

a. Management’s Discussion and Analysis — GASB Statement No. 34 requires
that financial statements be accompanied by a narrative introduction and
analytical overview of the City’s financial activities in the form of
“management’s discussion and analysis” (MD&A). This analysis is similar
to the analysis provided in the annual reports of private-sector
organizations.

b  Government-Wide Financial Statements — The reporting model includes
financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the
City’s activities. This approach includes not just current assets and
liabilities but also capital and other long-term assets as well as long-term
liabilities. Accrual accounting also reports all of the revenues and costs of
providing services each year, not just those received or paid in the current
year or soon thereafter.

Statement of Net Assets — The statement of net assets is designed to display
the financial position of the primary government (government and business-
type activities). The City now reports all capital assets in the government-
wide statement of net assets and reports depreciation expense — the cost of
“using up” capital assets — in the statement of activities. The net assets of
the City are broken down into three components: 1) invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, 2) restricted and 3) unrestricted.

(continued)
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NOTE 1:  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(D) Implementation of GASB Statement No.34 (continued)

1. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (continued)

b. Statement of Net Assets (continued)
Restricted net assets are those with constraints placed on their use by either:
1) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
All net assets not otherwise classified as restricted are shown as
unrestricted. Generally, the City would first apply restricted resources
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.

Statement of Activities — The government-wide statement of activities
reports expenses and revenues in a format that focuses on the cost of each
of the City’s functions. The expense of individual functions is compared to
the revenue generated directly by the function. Accordingly, the City has
recorded capital and certain other long-term assets and liabilities in the
statement of net assets, and has reported all revenues and the cost of
providing services under the accrual basis of accounting in the statement of
activities.

2. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 36

The City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 36, Receipt Reporting for Certain
Shared Nonexchange Revenues. This statement amends GASB Statement No. 33 with respect to
the manner in which shared nonexchange revenues are accounted for by recipient governments.

3. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 37

The City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus. This
statement amends GASB Statement No. 34 to either 1) clarify certain provisions or 2) modify
other provisions that GASB believes may have unintended consequences in some circumstances.
Accordingly, the City considered the effects of this statement when adopting the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 34 as previously described.

4. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 38

The City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement Note
Disclosures. This statement modifies, establishes, and rescinds certain financial statement
disclosure requirements. Accordingly, certain footnote disclosures have been revised to conform
to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 38.

(continued)
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(D) Implementation of GASB Statement No.34 (continued)

(E)

5. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 40

The City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosures. This statement amends GASB Statement No. 3 and establishes more comprehensive
disclosure requirements addressing common risks of the deposits and investments of state and
local governments.

6. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 44

The City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: The
Statistical Section. This statement amends National Council on Governmental Accounting
Statement 1 and establishes and modifies requirements related to the supplementary information
presented in a Statistical section in order to improve the understandability and usefulness of the
information.

7. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 50

The City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures.  This
statement amends GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27 and establishes more comprehensive
disclosure requirements related to financial reporting by pension plans and by employers that
provide defined benefit and defined contribution pensions.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Different measurement focuses are applied to governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds. The
governmental fund measurement focus is on determination of financial position and changes in
financial position. Governmental funds focus on the flow of resources. The proprietary and
pension fund measurement focus is on determination of net income, financial position, and
changes in financial position. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not measure results of
operation or have a measurement focus.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed by the governmental funds. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both
measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers revenues available
if they are earned by June 30 and the revenue is expected to be collected within 60 days after year-
end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest
on general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been
accumulated in the debt service fund for payments to be made early in the following year.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues (grants, subsidies and
shared revenues), the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are
used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies
must be expended on specific purpose of the project before any amounts will be paid to the City;
therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded.

(continued)
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(E) Basis of Accounting (continued)

In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditures and nearly irrevocable,
i.e., revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements, e.g., equal
employment opportunity. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier
if they meet the criterion of availability.

Licenses and permits, charges for services, fines, forfeitures and miscellaneous revenues are
recorded as revenues when received. Investment interest is recorded as earned since they are
measurable and available. City sales tax, collected by the State of Arizona and property taxes are
accrued in the accounting period they become both measurable and available.

The portion of property tax levies available on June 30, 2009, are recorded as receivable, net of
allowance for uncollectibles. The balance of the tax levy not collected within 60 days after year-
end are reflected as deferred revenue.

Special assessments and notes receivables are recorded as revenue as installments are received.
The balances of these receivables are reflected as deferred revenue. Direct loans made through
Community Development Block Grants are reflected as a reserve in fund balance.

All proprietary and pension funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are
earned and become measurable. Expenses are recorded in the accounting period incurred.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds
and Other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the City follows GASB
guidance as applicable to its proprietary funds, and Financial Accounting Standards Boards
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principals Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989 that do not conflict with or contradict GASB
Pronouncements.

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

(F) Budgetary Data

(1) In the spring of each year, the City Manager submits to City Council an estimate of the
expenditures necessary to conduct the affairs of the City for the fiscal year commencing
July 1st.

(2) The Council holds open work sessions relating to budget preparation.

(continued)
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(F) Budgetary Data (continued)

(G)

(H)

(3) After required public hearings are held, budget for all governmental and proprietary funds
(excluding internal service and pension funds) are legally enacted prior to the third Monday
of July as required by Arizona Revised Statutes. The budget specifies expenditure amounts
by activity.

(4) Transfers of budgeted amounts within a department can be authorized by the Director of
Finance upon the City Manager’s approval unless the transfer involves a transfer from
personal services. This type of budgetary transfer requires Council approval. Council
approval is required for transfers of budgeted amounts from one department or fund to
another. The original budget has been amended for the year ending 2008-2009.

(5) All funds except internal service funds are subject to the comprehensive appropriated
budget except as provided under state law.

(6) Encumbrances are not used by the City. All appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.
Invoices for goods and services received on or before June 30 must be paid within 60 days
of the fiscal year-end.

(7) The budget for the City is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles.

(8) Under State statutes, there are certain annual expenditure limitations to which the City
adheres.

(9) Several supplemental appropriations were necessary during the year.

(10) Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level.

GASB #34 requires that budgetary comparison statements for the general fund and major special
revenue funds be presented in the annual financial statements. These statements must display
original budget, final budget and actual results. The City has also shown this information as
supplementary schedules for other governmental funds as well as enterprise funds.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash represents amounts in demand deposits and amounts held in trust by financial institutions.
The funds held in trust are available to the City upon demand. Cash equivalents are defined as
short-term (original maturities of three months or less), highly liquid investments that are 1)
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 2) so near maturity that they present
insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.

Investments

The City adheres to the Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S. §35-323) that governs the investment of
City funds. Eligible investments include certificate of deposits in eligible depositories, interest
bearing accounts in qualified banks, repurchase agreements, pooled investments by the State
Treasurer, bonds of the U.S. Government that are guaranteed as to principal and interest, and
bonds of the state, county, city, town or school district. All investments except for the Part-time
Firemen’s Pension funds are invested in the State’s Local Government Investment Pool.

(continued)
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(H) Investments (continued)

0

()

The State’s investment pool is managed by the State Treasurer’s office. The pool is not required
to register with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 1940 Investments Advisors
Act. The activity and performance of the pool is reviewed monthly by the State Board of
Investment in accordance with A.R.S. §35-311. The Arizona State Treasurer issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. Copies may be obtained by contacting the Arizona State Treasurer, 1700 West
Washington, Phoenix, Arizona 85007. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31 “Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools,” the City records
all its investments at fair value as defined in the statement. The Part-time Firemen’s Pension
investments are valued from quoted market prices at year-end.

Inventories

Inventories for governmental and proprietary funds consist primarily of expendable supplies.
Governmental funds maintain inventories using the consumption method of accounting. All
inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out method.
Physical inventories are conducted at year-end for financial statements purposes.

Capital Assets

Capital Assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year.

Assets contributed (donated) to those funds are recorded by reference to historical costs of the
donor if recently purchased or constructed, or if such records are not available, at estimated fair
market value on the date of receipt. General government infrastructure capital assets include those
assets acquired or constructed since 1980.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is

included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. Interest of $28,296 was
capitalized for the wastewater treatment plant expansion.

(continued)
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

V)

Capital Assets (continued)

Depreciation of all assets is recorded and calculated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

BUITAINGS ovevecieiee e 40 years
SEWEK SYSTEM ...t 20 to 50 years
SrEEt SYSIEM ..o 20 to 30 years
Building and facility improvements ...........ccccoevvveincnennns 20 years
Streetlights and traffic control devices...........cccoovvvcvrenne. 20 years
Other Improvements and landscaping .........c.cccceveveienienne. 15 years
VENICIES ..o 3to 15 years
EQUIPMENT ... 5 to 10 years
Furniture and fiXtUreS ......ccccoeveve v 5 to 10 years
COMPULErS/SOTIWATE.......cviveieciece e 3 years

(K) Compensated Absences

(L)

City employees are granted one day of vacation leave per month. Employees are entitled to
accumulate vacation to a maximum allowable limit depending on the number of years of service.
In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for the accumulated vacation leave.

Different measurement focuses for governmental and proprietary funds were considered when
determining the compensated absences liability. Because the measurement focus for proprietary
funds is the determination of net income, current and long-term liabilities are recorded in the
accounting records. The measurement focus for governmental funds is the flow of financial
resources; expenditures for vacation time are accrued as current liabilities only if they have
matured (i.e., unused reimbursable leave still outstanding following an employee’s resignation or
retirement).

City employees with less than ten years of service are granted nonvesting sick leave. Employees
with ten or more years of service will be paid the unused accrued sick leave as follows:

10 — 15 years of service will receive 30% up to a maximum of 128 hours

15 — 19 years of service will receive 40% up to a maximum of 218 hours

20 or more years of service will receive 50% up to a maximum of 640 hours.
Sick leave compensation is accounted for in the period in which the event takes place.

Long-term Obligations

A distinction is made between proprietary fund long-term liabilities and governmental long-term
debt. Governmental funds’ long-term obligations are recognized as a liability in the governmental
funds when due and expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources. Long-
term obligations expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for in
those funds.

(continued)
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(M) Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are categorized as loans, reimbursements, interfund services provided and
used or transfers. Loans between funds are reported in the balance sheet of the borrowing and
lending funds as a liability and receivable, respectively. Reimbursements are expenditures or
expenses of one fund but are attributable to another fund. An example of this type of transaction
is when one fund purchases a supply in which another fund uses, thus reimbursing the original
funds expenditure/ expense. An interfund services provided and used transaction is a revenue or
expenditure/expense if the transaction involved an outside party. Utility receipts and payments are
examples of transactions where the fund receiving the service records an expenditure/expense and
the fund supplying the service records a revenue. Other interfund transactions are classified as
transfers. Transfers usually reflect ongoing operating subsidies between funds.

(N) Fund Equity

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditures or legally
segregated for a specific future use.

Cash and Investments

At year-end, the City had the following cash and investments:

Cash $ 13,506,125
Investments 108,633,884
Restricted investments 5,772,300

Total cash and investments  $127,912,309

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, an entity will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

The carrying amount of the City’s cash in bank totaled $13,506,125 and the bank balance was
$16,893,277. Federal Depository Insurance covered the City’s deposits at June 30, 2009, to the extent
of $250,000. Deposits of $16,693,277 were collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name. Casa Grande does
not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.

(continued)
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NOTE 2:  Cash and Investments (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents include restricted and unrestricted amounts and are included in the financial
statements as follows:

Governmental Business Fiduciary
Activities Activities Fund Total
Cash $ 12,586,951 $ 898,927 $ 20,247 $ 13,506,125
Investments 83,259,396 23,077,964 2,296,524 108,633,884
Restricted investments 5,645,706 126,594 - 5,772,300
$101,492,053 $24,103,485 $2,316,771 $127,912,309

Investments

The City’s policy is to invest unrestricted cash in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), an
investment pool managed by the State Treasurer’s Office that allows governments within the State to
pool their funds for investment purposes. The LGIP is not registered with the Securities Exchange
Commission under the 1940 Investment Advisors Act. The State Board of Investment has oversight
responsibilities of the investment pool in accordance with ARS 35-311. The pool’s policy is to invest
in fixed-rate securities with a final maturity less than 24 months from the settlement date of the
purchase and variable-rate securities with final maturity less than 5 years. The dollar weighted average
portfolio maturity is less than 180 days. Only securities backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
Government may be purchased for this pool. The fair value balance of the pool at June 30, 2009 was
$2,920,955,238.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. All investments have a remaining maturity of 12 months or

less. Casa Grande does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

(continued)
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NOTE 2:  Cash and Investments (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type.

Ratings as of Year-End

Issuer Investment Type Amount AAA Unrated
LGIP State Investment Pool $113,598,033 $ - $113,598,033
Firefighter Pension:
American Funds Money Market 8,160 - 8,160
Linsco Money Market/Mut Fnds 520,810 - 520,810
Bank of New York Money Market 1,262 - 1,262
Wells Fargo Money Market 277,919 - 277,919
$114,406,184 $ - $114,406,184

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one
issuer. Investments in any one issuer are as follows:

Issuer Investment Type Reported Amount
LGIP State Investment Pool $113,598,033

Fire Fighter Pension Plan:
American Funds Money Market 8,160
Linsco/Private Ledger Money Market & Mutual Funds 520,810
Bank of New York Money Market 1,262
Wells Fargo Money Market 277,919
$114,406,184
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Cash with Fiscal Agent/Restricted Investments

In November 2006 and December 2008 the Villago Community Facilities District issued long-term
revenue obligations in which the funds received were placed with a third party trustee in an interest
bearing escrow account. The purpose of the funds is to finance construction.

Description of Designated Balance at
Fund Type Capital June 30, 2009
Capital - CFD Infrastructure $164,241

In April 2005, the Mission Royale Community Facilities District issued long-term revenue obligations
in which the funds received were placed with a third party trustee in an interest bearing escrow
account. The purpose of the funds is to finance the construction of sewer line.

Description of Designated Balance at
Fund Type Capital June 30, 2009
Capital - CFD Sewer Line $113,677

In January 2003, the City issued long-term revenue obligations in which the funds received were
placed with a third party trustee in an interest bearing escrow account. The funds are being used to
finance the Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Description of Designated Balance at
Fund Type Capital June 30, 2009
Enterprise - Wastewater Wastewater Treatment Plant $1,262

In June 2008, the City issued a general obligation bond in the amount of $11,000,000. A portion of
the bond has been spent on infrastructure and the balance is a restricted investment.

Description of Designated Balance at

Fund Type Capital June 30, 2009
Capital Projects Infrastructure $5,367,788
Enterprise — Golf Course Irrigation System 125,332
$5,493,120

(continued)
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Receivables

The following table summarizes the City’s governmental activities receivables as of June 30, 2009:

Special Debt
General Revenue Service Capital Total

Receivables:
Taxes $4,295,523  $ 591,090 $ - $ 147,362 $5,033,975
Accounts 115,298 501,634 11,820 - 628,752
Interest 25,512 47,906 215 27,092 100,725
Gross Receivables 4,436,333 1,140,630 12,035 174,454  5]763,452
Less: allowance

for uncollectible (250) - - - (250)

Net total receivables  $4,436,083 $1,140,630 $12,035 $174,454 $5,763,202

The following table summarizes the City’s business-type activities receivables as of June 30, 2009

Wastewater Golf
Water Wastewater  Dev Fees  Sanitation Course Total

Receivables:
Accounts $21,067 $1,123,459 $ - $1,405,250 $1,886 $2,551,662
Interest - 6,184 13,892 1,139 271 21,486
Gross Receivables 21,067 1,129,643 13,892 1,406,389 2,157 2,573,148
Less: allowance

for uncollectible - (780,514) - (981,700) - (1,762,214)

Net total receivables $21,067 $ 349,129 $13,892 $ 424689 $2,157 $ 810,934

Revenues of wastewater and sanitation are reported net of uncollectible amounts. Total uncollectible
amounts related to revenues of the current period are as follows:

Uncollectibles related to wastewater $ 112,101
Uncollectibles related to sanitation 174,391
Total uncollectibles of the current fiscal year $ 286,492

Direct Loans

The City issues loans to provide housing for low-income families, which are funded by Community
Development Block Grants from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development through the
Arizona Department of Commerce. These loans are paid back on a monthly basis and have varying
terms and maturity dates. At June 30, 2009, there were 57 of these loans outstanding, totaling
$476,420.
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Property Taxes

Avrizona Revised Statues require that property taxes be levied on or before the third Monday in August.
Taxes are levied and collected by the Pinal County Treasurer on real and personal property. Real
property taxes, payable in two installments, are due November 1 and May 1. Personal property taxes
are billed throughout the year. Interest and penalties are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay the tax
within a period of time specified by law. Taxes are considered a lien against real property at the date
of levy.

The primary tax levy is limited to a 2% increase over the previous year’s maximum allowable primary
levy plus an increased dollar amount due to a net gain in property not taxed the previous year. The
primary levy is further limited in that the primary tax from all jurisdictions may not exceed 1% of the
homeowner’s market value of the home. Secondary taxes are levied to retire voter approved general
obligation bonds.

The City’s 2008-2009 maximum primary levy limit was $2,566,631. The primary tax levy was
$2,563,483. The City’s secondary tax levy was $2,769,751.

Using the modified accrual basis of accounting, property tax revenue is recognized when it becomes
both measurable and available to finance expenditures as of June 30, and expected to be collected
within 60 days after year-end. Available means taxes due or past due at the end of the fiscal year.
Deferred revenue includes the balance of the property tax levy that does not meet the accrual criteria.
Property tax receivable and deferred revenue at June 30, 2009, are $47,290 and $154,837 respectively.

Capital Assets
A summary of business-type activities property, plant and equipment at June 30, 2009 follows:

Balance Additions &  Disposals & Balance
6/30/08 Adjustments  Adjustments 6/30/09

Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land/Constr in progress $3,733,683 $10,682,340 $ - $14,416,023

Capital assets being
depreciated:

Building & Improvements 54,210,077 2,641,396 - 56,851,473
Machinery & Equipment 6,118,129 2,530,496 (419,467) 8,229,158
Total Capital Assets 64,061,889 15,854,232 (419,467) 79,496,654

Less: accumulated
depreciation (15,117,109)  (2,354,172) 323,813 (17,147,468)
Net Capital Assets $48,944,780  $13,500,060 $(95,654) $62,349,186
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Capital Assets (continued)

June 30, 2009

Business-type capital assets changes in Accumulated Depreciation by class:

Buildings
Machinery & equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

A summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets follows:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land & construction in progress

Capital assets being
depreciated:

Buildings

Improvements

Heavy machinery & equipment

Operational Equipment

Total General Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings

Improvements

Heavy machinery & equipment
Operational equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total General Capital Assets

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Disposals  June 30, 2009
$12,092,457 $1,814,947 $ - $13,907,404
3,024,652 539,225 (323,813) 3,240,064
$15,117,109 $2,354,172  $(323,813)  $17,147,468
Balance Adjustments  Adjustments Balance
June 30,2008 & Additions & Disposals  June 30, 2009
$ 13,088,754 $20,064,497  $(108,305) $33,044,946
17,809,921 1,438,546 - 19,248,467
173,646,136 7,836,429 - 181,482,565
1,736,228 63,217 - 1,799,445
17,021,771 2,565,550 (663,349) 18,923,972
$223,302,810  $31,968,239  $(771,654)  $254,499,395
$ 6,462,537 $ 1,032,491 $ - $ 7,495,028
50,913,259 8,022,584 - 58,935,843
1,182,671 151,381 - 1,334,052
8,660,676 1,696,359 (629,327) 9,727,708
67,219,143 10,902,815 (629,317) 77,492,631
$156,083,667  $21,065,424  $(142,327)  $177,006,764
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Capital Assets (continued)

The City had additions to contributed capital assets during the fiscal year 2008-2009. The
Governmental Activities Capital Assets include a total of $6,936,401 in contributed capital assets
received in fiscal year 2008-20009.

Depreciation Expense was charged to the functions/programs of the government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 326,418
Public Safety 1,267,190
Streets/Transportation 7,960,264
Public Works 71,585
Culture and Recreation 566,994
Economic Development 682,532
Internal Service 27,832
Total Depreciation Expense -
Governmental Activities $10,902,815
Business-type Activities:
Water $ 44,540
Wastewater 1,776,970
Sanitation 421,551
Golf Course 111,111
Total Depreciation Expense -
Business-type Activities $2,354,172

Retirement and Pension Plans

All full-time City employees are covered by one of two contributory retirement and pension plans,
which are administered by the State of Arizona under State Statute. Part-time firefighters participate in
the Casa Grande Part-time Firemen’s Pension Plan. The following summarizes each plan.

(A) Arizona State Retirement Plan

Plan Description. The Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) administers a cost sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers general employees of the City. The
ASRS is governed by the Arizona State Retirement System Board according to the provisions of
A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2. Benefits are established by state statute and generally
provide retirement, death, long-term disability, survivor, and health insurance premium benefits.
ASRS issues a publicly available report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. The report may be obtained in writing at ASRS, 3300 N. Central
Avenue, P.O. Box 33910, Phoenix, Arizona 85067-3910 or by calling 602-240-2200 or 1-800-
621-3778.

(continued)
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Retirement and Pension Plans (continued)

(A) Arizona State Retirement Plan (continued)

(B)

Funding Policy. The Arizona State Legislature has the authority to establish and amend benefits
provisions and contributions for active plan members. For the year ended June 30, 2009, active
ASRS members and the City were each required by statute to contribute at the actuarially
determined rate of 9.45 percent (8.95 percent retirement and 0.5 percent long-term disability) of
the members’ annual covered payroll. The City’s contributions to ASRS for the years ended June
30, 2009, 2008 and 2007 were $1,263,961, $1,142,516 and $976,996, respectively, which were
equal to the required contributions for those years. Prior year’s rates are 9.6% for 2008 and 9.1%
for 2007.

Arizona Public Safety Personnel Retirement System

Plan Description. The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) is an agent multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan that covers public safety personnel who are regularly
assigned hazardous duty as employees of the State of Arizona or one of its political subdivisions.
The PSPRS, acting as a common investment and administrative agent, is governed by a five-
member board, known as The Fund Manager, and 167 local boards according to the provisions of
A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4. The City contributes to one PSPRS plan for police and one
for fire fighters. Benefits are established by state statute and generally provide retirement, death,
long-term disability, survivor, and health insurance premium benefits. PSPRS issues a publicly
available report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be obtained in writing at PSPRS, 1020 E. Missouri Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85014.

Funding Policy - The Arizona State Legislature has the authority to establish and amend benefits
provisions and contributions for active plan members. For the year ended June 30, 2008 active
PSPRS members were required by statute to contribute 7.65 percent of the members’ annual
covered payroll, and the City was required to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 20.38
percent and 16.19 percent for covered payroll totaling $4,958,997 and $3,980,691 to the plan for
police and fire respectively. The City contributed the required amount.

(continued)
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NOTE 8:  Retirement and Pension Plans (continued)

(B) Arizona Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (continued)

Annual Pension Cost - The City’s pension cost for the year ended June 30, 2008, the date of the
most recent actuarial valuation, and related information follow.

Contribution rates: PSPRS - Police PSPRS - Fire

City 20.38% 16.19%

Plan members 7.65% 7.65%
Annual pension cost 804,354 524,248
Contributions made 804,354 524,248
Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 8.50% 8.50%

Projected salary increases 5.5% - 8.5% 5.5% - 8.5%

Includes inflation at cost-of-living adjustments 5.0% 5.0%
Amortization method Level Percentage Level Percentage
Open Open
Remaining amortization period from 7/1/00 Open 20 Years Open 20 Years
Asset valuation method Smoothed Market Smoothed Market
Post retirement benefit increases Based on Inv. Income Based on Inv. Income

Trend Information - Information of the PSPRS plan as of the most recent actuarial valuation

follows:
Year Annual Percentage
Ended Pension of APC Net Pension
Plan June 30 Cost (APC) Contribution Obligation
PSPRS - Police 2008 $804,354 100% -
2007 572,490 100% -
2006 534,794 100% -
PSPRS - Fire 2008 $524,248 100% -
2007 342,549 100% -
2006 303,654 100% -

(continued)
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NOTE 8:  Retirement and Pension Plans (continued)

(B) Arizona Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (continued)

Required Supplementary Information (unaudited)

Schedule of Funding progress - An analysis of funding progress for each of the plans as of the
most recent actuarial valuations, June 30, 2008, follows:

PSPRS - Police
Unfunded
Actuarial  Actuarial Actuarial Funding Annual Liability as
Valuation  Value of Accrued Liability =~ Funded  Covered Percentage of
Date Plan Assets  Liability (Excess) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
(@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) ([b-aJ/c)
6/30/08 $13,843,134 $23,975,402 $10,132,268 57.7% $4,958,997 204.3%
6/30/07 13,287,359 22,057,218 8,769,859  60.2% 4,264,393 205.7%
6/30/06 13,392,641 19,728,857 6,336,216 67.9% 3,739,428 169.4%
PSPRS - Fire
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Funding Annual Liability as
Valuation ~ Value of Accrued Liability = Funded  Covered Percentage of
Date Plan Assets  Liability (Excess) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (© ([b-a/c)
6/30/08 $8,171,079 $13,175,141  $5,004,062  62.0% $3,980,691 125.7%
6/30/07 7,581,685 12,800,685 5,219,000 59.2% 2,918,183 178.8%
6/30/06 7,751,453 11,192,351 3,440,898  69.3% 2,544,227 135.2%

(C) Casa Grande Part-time Firemen’s Pension Plan

The Casa Grande Part-time Firemen’s Pension Plan is a single-employer defined contribution
plan, which was approved by the City Council on August 21, 1989, under Arizona Revised
Statutes Section 9-981. The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rests with the City
Council. In December 1999, the council revised the pension and benefit program for the part-time
firefighters.

The City discontinued using part-time firefighters as of December 31, 2005.

(continued)
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Retirement and Pension Plans (continued)

(C) Casa Grande Part-time Firemen’s Pension Plan (continued)

The assets of the plan are valued annually and the earnings or loss is distributed among the
participant’s accounts in the plan. The only expenditures being made from this fund are
administration fees, retirement payments, and refunds to those firefighters who leave the service of
the Fire Department before becoming eligible for pension benefits. The cost of administering the
plan is financed from investment earnings. Retirement with full benefits can be at age fifty-five
(55) or twenty years of credited service. This plan was fully vested as of June 30, 2005. As of
June 30, 2009, there were 15 eligible employees participating in the plan. The plan is
administered by The Innes Associates.

As of June 30, 2009, the plan’s assets consisted of the following:

Cash $ 840
Money Market Funds 8,160
Mutual Funds 520,810

Total Assets $529,810

The plan has never had an actuarial valuation; however, benefits cannot exceed plan assets. The
market values of mutual funds are determined from readily available market quotations.

The fund uses the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are recognized when earned; benefits
and refunds are expensed when incurred.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss, related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City’s liability risks are
covered through membership in the Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool. The City is responsible
for the first $10,000 of all insured claims inclusive of all loss adjustment expenses. Settled claims
from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage for the past five years. The City has $2 million
general liability coverage with $10,000 deductible and a $10 million umbrella liability policy.

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including workers’
compensation, employee health and accident, airport activities and fuel use bond. Settled claims

resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past four
fiscal years.

(continued)
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NOTE 10: Capital Leases

Leases at June 30, 2009, included the following:

Governmental activities:
Lease with option to purchase Public Works Facility. Quarterly installments of
$74,375 including interest of 4.887%, due through May 9, 2020. $2,520,725

Lease with option to purchase 2 fuel trucks ($18,388 Airport) and 1 street sweeper
($21,218 Streets). Quarterly installments of $8,189 including interest of 4.461%,
due through August 20, 2010. 39,606

Lease with option to purchase Airport T-hangers. Quarterly installments of $22,944
including interest of 5.081%, due through August 20, 2013. 348,830

Total Governmental Activities Capital Lease Obligation $2,909,161

Business-Type Activities:
Sanitation:

Lease with option to purchase Tractor and Compactor. Quarterly installments

of $24,795, including interest at 3.685%, due through September 3, 20009. $24,569
Lease with option to purchase a garbage truck. Quarterly installments of
$6,868, including interest at 4.461%, due through August 20, 2010. 33,221
Total Business-type Activities Capital Lease Obligation 57,790
Total Long-Term Lease Payable $2,966,951

(continued)
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The future minimum lease payments by year are:

Fiscal Year Ending Government Business-type
June 30, Activities Activities Total
2010 422,032 52,267 474,299
2011 397,466 6,869 404,335
2012 389,278 - 389,278
2013 389,278 - 389,278
2014 320,444 - 320,444
2015-2020 1,785,006 - 1,785,006

Total minimum lease payments 3,703,504 59,136 3,762,640

Less: amount representing interest (794,343) (1,346) (795,689)

Present value of future minimum

lease payments 2,909,161 57,790 2,966,951

Less: current portion (284,693) (50,997) (335,690)

Noncurrent portion $2,624,468 $ 6,793 $2,631,261

Leased Capital Assets
The following is an analysis of the leased assets included in capital assets:
Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Balance
Building and Improvements:

Governmental Activities Assets $4,016,939 $(428,275) $3,588,664
Total Building and Improvement 4,016,939 (428,275) 3,588,664
Machinery and Equipment

Governmental Activities Assets 201,169 (128,507) 72,662

Business-type Activities Assets:

Sanitation 743,265 (413,141) 330,124
Total Machinery and Equipment 944,434 (541,648) 402,786
Total Leased Capital Assets $4,961,373 $(969,923) $3,991,450
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Bond Debt

A summary of long-term bond debt transactions for the year ended June 30, 2009, follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
Governmental Activities 2008 Issued Retired 2009
General obligation bonds $10,775,000 $750,000 $(1,785,451) $9,739,549
Special assessment bonds 255,000 - (125,000) 130,000
Total Bonds Outstanding $11,030,000 $750,000 $(1,910,451) $9,869,549
Business-type Activities
General obligation bonds $2,000,000 - $(394,500) $1,605,500
Total Bonds Outstanding $2,000,000 - $(394,500) $1,605,500
Summarization of the long-term bond debt payable at June 30, 2009, follows:
Original Amount Date Balance
Issue of Interest of Final June 30,
Bond Description Amount Installment Rate Payment 2009

General obligation

Special Assessment:
ID #38

Total Bonds Outstanding

1,030,000

$13,540,000 $10,000-2,170,000 3.50% - 5.80%

75,000 - 130,000

5.40%

01/01/10

07/15/32 $11,345,049

130,000
$11,475,049

The following table summarizes the City’s future bond debt service requirements as of June 30, 2009:

Business-type

Governmental Activities Activities
Year General Special General
Ending Obligation Assessment Obligation
June 30, Bonds (1) (3) Fund (2) Bonds (3) Total
Bonds Interest Bonds  Interest Bonds Interest Bonds Interest
2010 $1,087,271 $364,114  $130,000 $7,020 $222,730 $59,697 $1,440,001 $430,831
2011 586,363 391,013 - - 113,638 53,811 700,001 444,824
2012 275,454 374,017 - - 44 546 51,043 320,000 425,060
2013 325,454 361,473 - - 54,546 49,308 380,000 410,781
2014 330,454 347,814 - - 54,546 47,399 385,000 395,213
2015-2019 2,012,269 1,488,997 - - 332,721 200,978 2,344,990 1,689,975
2020-2024 3,143,176 873,991 - - 541,824 107,109 3,685,000 981,100
2025-2029 1,784,108 197,862 - - 240,949 10,263 2,025,008 208,125
2030-2032 195,000 12,675 - - - - 195,000 12,675
$9,739,549 $4,411,956 $130,000 $7,020 $1,605,500 $579,608 $11,475,049  $4,998,584
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Bond Debt (continued)

1) Community Facilities Districts (CFDs), special purpose districts created specifically to acquire or
construct public infrastructure within specified areas of the City, are authorized under state law to
issue General Obligation (GO) bonds to be repaid by property taxes levied on property within the
district. CFDs are created by petition to the City Council by property owners within the area to be
covered by the district and debt may be issued only after approval of the voters within the district.

In April 2005 the Mission Royale Community Facilities District issued $1,335,000 of General
Obligation bonds to finance the construction of a sewer line. These bonds will be repaid by the
property owners within Mission Royale CFD. The bonds are obligations of the district only. The
City has no obligation for the debt other than administration of the collection of property taxes and
payment of the debt service on behalf of Mission Royale. Principal payments on the bond begin in
July, 2009.

In November 2006 the Villago Community Facilities District issued $455,000 and in December 2008
issued $750,000 of General Obligation bonds to finance construction. These bonds will be repaid by
the property owners within Villago CFD. The bonds are obligations of the district only. The City has
no obligation for the debt other than administration of the collection of property taxes and payment of
the debt service on behalf of Villago. Principal payments on the bonds began in July, 2007 and 2009.

2) The Special Assessment Bonds are secured and payable from special assessments levied against
the real property benefited by said improvements. If the assessments are not paid, the properties
subject to such assessments are sold at auction. If there is no purchaser for any property offered for
sale, the City will get ownership of the property subject to any tax liens and will be liable for the
remaining debt. The City Council is required to appropriate from the General Fund of the City the
amount of the total unpaid assessments or the amount of each semiannual assessment until the total
debt is paid.

3) In June 2008 the City issued $11,000,000 of General Obligation bond debt to finance golf course
improvements of $2,000,000, recreation center improvements of $1,500,000, construction of a new
public safety building of $2,000,000, new fire station of $2,500,000 and new library of $3,000,000.
The 20-year bond has interest rates ranging from 3.50% to 4.25%. Principal payments ranging from
$2,170,000 to $675,000 are paid annually with interest paid semiannually on July 1 and January 1.

Excise Tax Revenue Obligations

In October 1997, the City issued $3,590,000 of Excise Tax Revenue Obligations Series 1997 to
finance the restoration of a 1921 vintage school building for use as a new City Hall. The 20-year
revenue obligations have interest rates that range from 4.80 to 6.00 percent. Principal payments
ranging from $110,000 to $290,000 are paid annually with interest paid semiannually on April 1, and
October 1.

In April 1999, the City issued $5,000,000 of Excise Tax Revenue Obligations Series 1999 to finance
the acquisition, construction and equipping of two public recreational complexes and improvements
to existing recreational facilities. The 15-year revenue obligations have interest rates that range from
4.40 to 4.80 percent. Principal payments ranging from $200,000 to $410,000 are paid annually with
interest paid semiannually on April 1, and October 1. The remaining principal balance of $2,825,000
was paid off on April 1, 2009

(continued)
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NOTE 12:  Excise Tax Revenue Obligations (continued)

On December 1, 2003, the City issued $18,120,000 of Excise Tax Revenue Obligations Series 2003.
The 20-year revenue obligations have interest rates that range from 2.00 to 5.00 percent. Principal
payments ranging from $780,000 to $1,600,000 are paid annually on April 1.
$9,300,000 was used to finance the construction of a wastewater treatment plant. $8,820,000 was
used to advance refund $4,560,000 of Series 1994 and $3,830,000 of Series 1995 Excise Tax
Revenue Obligations with interest rates ranging from 4.35 to 6.00 and 5.00 to 6.20 percent,
respectively.

The 1997 and 2003 revenue obligations are secured by a pledge of and first lien on all excise,
transaction, franchise, privilege and business taxes, state shared sales and income taxes, fees for
licenses and permits and state revenue sharing which the City presently or in the future validly
imposes or receives from other entities.

The following table summarizes the City’s future revenue obligation debt service requirements as of
June 30, 2009:

Year Governmental Business-type
Ending Activities Activities Total
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2010 250,530 153,369 569,470 602,363 820,000 755,732
2011 266,753 141,926 583,248 583,856 850,001 725,782
2012 278,790 129,236 606,210 561,984 885,000 691,220
2013 290,828 115,969 629,173 539,251 920,001 655,220
2014 307,865 101,516 652,135 514,084 960,000 615,600
2015-2019 1,313,594 272,140 5,506,409 2,082,470 6,820,003 2,354,610
2020-2022 421,958 41,627 4,757,808 469,124 5,179,766 510,751

$3,130,318 $955,783  $13,304,453 $5,353,132 $16,434,771 $6,308,915

NOTE 13: WIFA Financing

In January, 2009 the City of Casa Grande received financing from the Water Infrastructure Finance
Authority (WIFA) of Arizona to finance a wastewater treatment plant expansion project expected to
be completed in 2011. The loan is for a total of $62,555,540; however the balance disbursed to the
City of Casa Grande at June 30, 2009 is $4,213,836. The following schedule shows estimated
payments based on the amount due of $4,213,836.

Year
Ending
June 30, Principal Interest

2010 $1,257,390 $198,114

2011 1,308,081 119,145

2012 1,360,752 66,429

2013 287,613 11,591
Total $4,213,836 $395,279

The twenty year loan has an interest rate of 4.029%. Principal payments ranging from $1,257,390 to
$4,497,458 are paid annually with interest paid semiannually on October 1 and April 1.
(continued)
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Changes in Long-Term Obligations

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
Governmental Activities: July 1, 2008 Additions Reductions June 30, 2009 One Year
Compensated absences $ 880,353  $1,642,544 $ (908,000) $ 1,614,897 $1,614,897
Bonds payable 10,902,432 795,000 (1,827,883) 9,869,549 1,217,271
Excise tax revenue obligations 6,199,218 - (3,068,900) 3,130,318 250,530
Capital leases 3,180,357 - (271,196) 2,909,161 284,693
Bond premium 127,568 - (6,798) 120,770 -
Bond discount - (45,000) 1,406 (43,594) -
Total Governmental Activities $21,289,928  $2,392,544 $(6,081,371) $17,601,101 $3,367,391
Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within
Business-type Activities: July 1, 2008 Additions Reductions June 30, 2009 One Year
Compensated absences $ 112,243 $ 232,908 $(104,000) 241,151 $241,151
Bond payable 1,973,217 - (394,549) 1,578,668 222,730
Capital leases 179,123 - (121,333) 57,790 50,997
Excise tax revenue obligations 13,526,281 - (529,854) 12,996,427 569,470
Notes payable (1) 148,643 - (10,167) 138,476 10,567
Loan payable — see note 13 - 4,213,836 - 4,213,836 1,257,390
Bond premium 356,104 - (21,246) 334,858 -
Total Business-type Activities  $16,295,611  $4,446,744  $(1,181,149) $19,561,206  $2,352,305

(1) In January, 2002 the Water Fund received financing from the Water Infrastructure Finance
Authority of Arizona. The note is paid semi-annually until July 2019 with an interest rate of 3.437%.

Long-term compensated absences of governmental activities are expected to be liquidated by the
operating funds (primarily the General Fund) as they become due.

66

(continued)



To Table of Contents

NOTE 15:

NOTE 16:

CITY OF CASA GRANDE, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2009

Long-Term Debt

The following summarizes the annual debt service requirements to maturity for all long-term debt
excluding compensated absences, including interest of $12,359,903.

Governmental Business-type
Year Ending Activities Activities Total
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal
2010 1,752,494 661,843 2,111,155 866,021 3,863,649
2011 1,127,139 656,383 2,020,690 761,095 3,147,829
2012 833,551 613,224 2,022,814 683,281 2,856,365
2013 909,646 573,356 983,027 603,580 1,892,673
2014 876,735 531,358 718,778 564,503 1,595,513
2015-2019 4,576,577 1,827,304 5,908,194 2,296,448 10,484,771
2020-2024 3,853,778 924,474 5,314,448 576,233 9,168,226
2025-2029 1,784,108 197,862 240,949 10,263 2,025,057
2030-2032 195,000 12,675 - - 195,000

$15,909,028 $5,998,479 $19,320,055 $6,361,424 $36,229,083

Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
require municipal solid waste landfill (MSWLF) owners and operators to provide for landfill closure
and postclosure care costs. The City of Casa Grande owns and operates one landfill. Closure and
postclosure care costs include cost of equipment expected to be installed and facilities expected to be
constructed, cost of final cover and cost of monitoring and maintaining the expected useable MSWLF
area. These costs are expected to be paid near or after the date that the MSWLF stops accepting solid
waste and during the postclosure period. The Environmental Protection Agency has established the
postclosure period to be 30 years. Closure and postclosure care costs are recognized in the current
period based on landfill capacity used to date. On June 30, 2009 the City has reported a $2,354,385
landfill closure and postclosure care liability that represents the total current cost based on 45 percent
of estimated capacity of the landfill.

The remaining cost of $2,922,889 will be recognized in the future periods as the remaining capacity is
filled. The City expects the remaining capacity to extend for 21 years, which will be through the year
2030. Total closure and postclosure costs are based on current costs, and are reevaluated annually for
changes in inflation or deflation, technology, and applicable laws or regulations. The 2009 valuation
of the total closure and postclosure costs were estimated to be $5,277,274.

(continued)
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Construction Commitments

The City has three significant construction commitments as of 6/30/09:

Hunter Contracting Company is constructing a wastewater plant expansion. The contract sum is
$48,425,466 and of that amount $6,204,101 has been paid.

Haydon Building Corporation is constructing a performance institute. The contract sum is
$18,750,000 and of that amount $6,099,860 has been paid.

Achen-Gardner Engineering is constructing Cottonwood Lane improvements. The contract sum is
$5,892,334 and of that amount $1,830,769 has been paid.

Summary of Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions as of June 30, 2009, were as follows:
Interfund Receivable/Payable:

Receivable Payable

Fund Amount Amount
General $3,488,500 $ -
Grants 345,000
Housing : -

Home/HUD - 64,000

Self-Help - 63,000

Home Program - 260,000
Recreation construction - 2,740,000
Airport construction - 16,500

Total $3,488,500 $3,488,500

(continued)
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Summary of Interfund Transactions (continued)

The interfund balances at June 30, 2009 are short-term loans to cover temporary cash deficits in

various funds.

Transfers:
Transfers Transfers
Fund Out In
Governmental Funds:
General $2,109,149 $1,727,297
Highway Users 714,257 749,176
Gen Oblig/Spec Assessment Debt 1,143,677 -
System Development 404,085 -
Capital Replacement 1,284,222 2,635,319
Grants - 184,005
Other Non-major Governmental 267,534 335,000
Total Governmental Funds 5,922,924 5,630,797
Enterprise Funds:
Water 27,400 -
Golf Course 128,500 694,500
Wastewater 175,548 -
Sanitation 1,083,848 1,284,222
Total Enterprise Funds 1,415,296 1,978,722
Internal Service Fund 271,301 -
Grand Totals $7,609,521 $7,609,521

There were no significant transfers during fiscal year 2009 that were either non-routine in nature or
inconsistent with the activities of the fund making the transfer.
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Deficit in Net Assets

The Grants and Subsidies fund has a deficit of ($335,403) in net assets because $614,789 in Due from other
governments was not received within 60 days of year end and is shown in deferred revenue. The
Home/HUD fund has a deficit of ($18,589) because $257,774 in Due from other governments was not
received within 60 days of year end and is shown in deferred revenue.

Sales Tax Incentive Agreement

In March, 2006 the City entered a tax-incentive agreement with WP Casa Grande Retail LLC in order to
develop the Promenade at Casa Grande mall. WP Casa Grande Retail is paid 50% of the retail sales and
construction activities tax collected by the City from Promenade sales. The agreement only applies to the
portion of tax that is not a dedicated or special tax.

The agreement is in effect for twenty years up to a maximum payment of $19,950,000 plus interest of 7%.
There is a provision to extend the agreement for an additional three years if the amount remaining unpaid
after twenty years is $3,000,000 or more (including accrued but unpaid interest). Payments are made to
WP Casa Grande Retail within forty-five days after the end of each calendar quarter for 50% of the tax
collected during that quarter. The first payment to WP Casa Grande Retail was made in September, 2008.
As of June 30, 2009 $1,482,156 (including $403,619 in interest) has been paid.

Subsequent Events

The City issued debt subsequent to the end of the fiscal year.

In July, 2009 the City issued $19,000,000 in General Obligation debt to design and construct a new public
safety facility. The 25 year bond has interest rates ranging from 4% to 5%. Principal payments ranging
from $370,000 to $1,700,000 are paid annually on July 1, with payments beginning July 2010. Interest is
paid semiannually on July and January 1, with payments beginning January 1, 2010.

In August, 2009 the City issued $18,800,000 in excise tax revenue obligations consisting of:
$7,175,000 in tax exempt obligations will be used to construct a new courthouse and make road
improvements. The 20 year obligation has interest rates ranging from 4.4% to 4.9%, with principal

payments beginning in April, 2024.

$11,625,000 in taxable obligations will be used to construct a multi-use sports complex. The 15 year
obligation has interest rates ranging from 2.3% to 6.4% with principal payments beginning in April, 2010.

: Grade Separation Settlement

The City received $1,500,000 from Union Pacific Railroad for future capital improvements to the
transportation corridors along Union Pacific’s rail lines. This one-time settlement was part of an agreement
between Union Pacific Railroad and cities in Pinal County.
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ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Receivables (less allowance
for uncollectibles)

Due from other governments

Fuel Inventory
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Due to other funds
Accrued wages and benefits
Deferred revenue
Total liabilities
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Special revenue
Debt service
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balance

City of Casa Grande, Arizona

Combining Balance Sheet

Non-Major Governmental Funds

June 30, 2009

Special Revenue

Municipal Parks Community Redevelop- Promotion Court
Airport Develop. Arts ment & Tourism Enhancement
$ 1,221 $ 1943 $ 1,994 1,082 % 1,725  $ 3,293
125,095 788,512 16,298 2,289,978 322,938 508,258
22,560 669 18 4,748 30,406 427
33,886 - - - - -
$ 182,762  $ 791,124  $ 18,310 2,295,808 $ 355,069 $ 511,978
$ 80,031 % 62 $ 7,855 - $ - $ -
2,772 - - - - -
82,803 62 7,855 - - -
99,959 791,062 10,455 2,295,808 355,069 511,978
99,959 791,062 10,455 2,295,808 355,069 511,978
$ 182,762  $ 791,124 % 18,310 2,295,808 $ 355069 $ 511,978
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Total
Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Nonmajor
Housing Public Safety Recreation Airport Governmental
Programs Programs Redevelopment Recreation Improvement Improvement Funds
$ 66,644 $ 5,708 $ 30,516 $ - $ 1,156 $ 134 $ 115,416
109,874 27,196 - - - - 4,188,149
92 22 - - - - 58,942
- - - - - 168,549 168,549
- - - - - - 33,886
$ 176,610 $ 32,926 $ 30,516 $ - $ 1,156 $ 168,683 $ 4,564,942
$ - $ 27 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 87,975
16,500 16,500
- - - - - - 2,772
- - - - - 145,255 145,255
- 27 - - - 161,755 252,502
- 32,899 - - - - 32,899
- - 30,516 - - - 30,516
176,610 - - - - - 4,240,941
- - - - 1,156 6,928 8,084
176,610 32,899 30,516 - 1,156 6,928 4,312,440
$ 176,610 $ 32,926 $ 30,516 $ - $ 1,156 $ 168,683 $ 4,564,942
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Special Revenue

Municipal Parks Community Redevelop- Promotion Court
REVENUES Airport Develop. Arts ment & Tourism Enhancement
Taxes:

Property taxes $ - $ - $ - $ 337491 $ - $ -
Sales Tax - - - - 243,416 -
Intergovernmental revenues - - - - - 8,463
Charges for services - - - - - 71,455
Investment earnings 1,829 8,211 33 16,453 1,615 3,428

Rental and sale of city property 1,297,773 30,705 - - - -
Miscellaneous 450 25,000 17,000 - - -
Total revenues 1,300,052 63,916 17,033 353,944 245,031 83,346
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,308,696 - - - 100,000 -
Public safety - - - - - -
Culture and recreation - 44,320 6,395 - - -
Economic development - - - 14,431 - -
Capital outlay - - 7,440 321,496 - -
Debt Service:
Principal 85,753 - - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges 21,231 - - - - -
Total expenditures 1,415,680 44,320 13,835 335,927 100,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (115,628) 19,596 3,198 18,017 145,031 83,346
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 5,000 - - -
Transfers out (40,400) - - - - -
Total other financing sources and uses (40,400) - 5,000 - - -
Net change in fund balances (156,028) 19,596 8,198 18,017 145,031 83,346
Fund balances - beginning of year 255,987 771,466 2,257 2,277,791 210,038 428,632
Fund balances - end of year $ 99,959 $ 791,062 $ 10,455 $ 2,295808 $ 355,069 $ 511,978
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Total
Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Nonmajor
Housing Public Safety Redevelop- Recreation Airport Governmental
Programs Programs ment Recreation Improvement Improvement Funds

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 337,491
- - - 565,036 - - 808,452
- - - - - 201,840 210,303
11,598 - - - - - 83,053
764 205 - 16,224 - - 48,762
- - - - - - 1,328,478
2,154 24,171 - - - - 68,775
14,516 24,376 - 581,260 - 201,840 2,885,314
- - - - - - 1,408,696
- 19,927 - - - - 19,927
- - - - - - 50,715
3,700 - 2,699 - - - 20,830
- - - - - 281,162 610,098
- - 195,000 2,825,000 - - 3,105,753
- - 109,476 128,110 - - 258,817
3,700 19,927 307,175 2,953,110 - 281,162 5,474,836
10,816 4,449 (307,175) (2,371,850) - (79,322) (2,589,522)
- - 320,000 - - 10,000 335,000
- - - (227,134) - - (267,534)
- - 320,000 (227,134) - 10,000 67,466
10,816 4,449 12,825 (2,598,984) - (69,322) (2,522,056)
165,794 28,450 17,691 2,598,984 1,156 76,250 6,834,496
$ 176,610 $ 32,899 $ 30,516 $ - $ 1,156 $ 6,928 $ 4,312,440
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
All Agency Funds
June 30, 2009

Flexible
Spending
Performance Plan
Bond Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash $ - $ 19,407 19,407
Interest receivable 1,412 - 1,412
Investments, at fair value 1,767,554 - 1,767,554
Total assets 1,768,966 19,407 1,788,373
LIABILITIES
Other liabilities 1,768,966 19,407 1,788,373
Total liabilities 1,768,966 19,407 1,788,373
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for other purposes $ - $ - -
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
All Agency Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Balance Balance
June 30, 2008 Additions Deductions June 30, 2009
Performance Bond Fund
Assets:
Investments $ 1,687,083 $ 80,471 $ - $ 1,767,554
Interest Receivable 6,430 - (5,018) 1,412
Total Assets 1,693,513 80,471 (5,018) 1,768,966
Liabilities:
Other Liabilities 1,637,932 92,876 - 1,730,808
Accounts Payable 55,581 38,158 (55,581) 38,158
1,693,513 131,034 (55,581) 1,768,966
Flexible Spending Plan Fund
Assets:
Cash 20,365 113,043 (114,001) 19,407
Total Assets 20,365 113,043 (114,001) 19,407
Liabilities:
Other Liabilities 20,365 - (958) 19,407
20,365 - - 19,407
Totals - All Agency Funds
Assets:
Cash 20,365 113,043 (114,001) 19,407
Investments 1,687,083 80,471 - 1,767,554
Interest Receivable 6,430 - (5,018) 1,412
Total Assets 1,713,878 193,514 (119,019) 1,788,373
Liabilities:
Other Liabilities 1,658,297 92,876 (958) 1,750,215
Accounts Payable 55,581 38,158 (55,581) 38,158
Total Liabilities $ 1,713,878 $ 131,034 $ (56,539) $ 1,788,373
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EXPENDITURES
General Government
Mayor and Council
Personal services
Other expenditures
City Manager
Personal services
Other expenditures
Attorney
Personal services
Other expenditures
Clerk
Personal services
Other expenditures
Finance
Personal services
Other expenditures
Information Technology
Personal services
Other expenditures
Administrative Services
Personal services
Other expenditures
Public Safety
Police
Personal services
Other expenditures
Fire
Personal services
Other expenditures
Court
Personal services
Other expenditures
Animal Control
Personal services
Other expenditures
Public Works
Personal services
Other expenditures
Culture and Recreation
Personal services
Other expenditures
Planning and Economic Development
Personal services
Other expenditures
Capital Outlay
Debt service
Total expenditures

City of Casa Grande, Arizona

General Fund
Schedule of Expenditures - Legal Level Budget Compliance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Budgeted Amounts Budget Variance
Positive

Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
146,400 $ 141,400 $ 132,362 $ 9,038
3,674,900 2,785,580 1,668,248 1,117,332
668,500 683,500 682,725 775
97,600 52,600 51,645 955
553,600 570,600 570,093 507
56,900 26,220 25,940 280
306,600 321,700 320,794 906
112,200 124,500 124,169 331
1,023,300 794,190 793,666 524
169,800 232,800 222,847 9,953
690,700 690,700 688,621 2,079
1,050,800 820,800 814,910 5,890
669,000 635,700 568,806 66,894
1,059,800 1,008,800 922,511 86,289
10,070,000 10,040,800 10,035,635 5,165
1,362,400 1,290,000 1,223,863 66,137
5,291,000 5,364,300 5,362,627 1,673
652,700 565,800 564,559 1,241
504,300 435,120 411,372 23,748
88,400 88,400 79,824 8,576
227,800 234,600 234,543 57
50,500 43,700 42,242 1,458
1,395,800 1,077,000 1,064,211 12,789
691,500 661,640 652,247 9,393
3,423,600 3,011,000 2,980,174 30,826
1,525,300 1,349,360 1,348,589 771
2,187,800 1,965,810 1,951,629 14,181
411,800 282,800 173,897 108,903
4,533,100 4,365,400 1,254,533 3,110,867
94,600 249,600 246,241 3,359
42,790,700 $ 39,914,420 $ 35,213,523 $ 4,700,897
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
General Obligation Bond/Special Assessments Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive

REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Special assessments $ 140,200 $ 140,200 $ 21,092 $ (119,108)
Property tax - - 2,809,580 2,809,580
Investment earnings 5,800 5,800 5,534 (266)

Total revenues 146,000 146,000 2,836,206 2,690,206
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Contractual services 7,200 3,700 1,473 2,227
Debt Service

Principal retirement 125,000 2,188,000 1,900,500 287,500

Interest 13,800 479,300 478,475 825

Total expenditures 146,000 2,671,000 2,380,448 290,552

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - (2,525,000) 455,758 2,980,758

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out - (750,000) (1,143,677) (393,677)

Total other financing uses - (750,000) (1,143,677) (393,677)

Net change in fund balance (3,275,000) (687,919) 2,587,081

Fund balance - beginning of year - 3,275,000 1,120,172 (2,154,828)
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 432,253 $ 432,253
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Capital Replacement/Development Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive

REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Investment earnings $ 300,000 $ 300,000 $ 223,089 $ (76,911)
Miscellaneous revenue - - 58,392 58,392
Construction sales tax 2,000,000 2,000,000 4,090,866 2,090,866

Total revenues 2,300,000 2,300,000 4,372,347 2,072,347
EXPENDITURES
Materials and supplies 694,100 694,100 501 693,599
Capital outlay 24,850,000 18,175,300 11,661,029 6,514,271

Total expenditures 25,544,100 18,869,400 11,661,530 7,207,870

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (23,244,100) (16,569,400) (7,289,183) 9,280,217

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out - (1,289,000) (1,284,222) 4,778
Transfers in 2,379,100 2,379,100 2,635,319 256,219
Grade separations settlement - - 1,500,000 1,500,000
Proceeds from obligations 13,965,000 13,965,000 - (13,965,000)

Total other financing sources and uses 16,344,100 15,055,100 2,851,097 (12,204,003)

Net change in fund balance (6,900,000) (1,514,300) (4,438,086) (2,923,786)

Fund balance - beginning of year 6,900,000 1,514,300 28,462,679 26,948,379
Fund balance - end of year 3$ - $ - $ 24,024,593 $ 24,024,593
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Community Facilities Districts - Capital Projects

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Property Tax $ 355,000 $ 274,000 $ 346,968 $ 72,968
Developer Contribution - - 21,000 21,000
Sewer Capacity Fees 100,000 - 14,500 14,500
Investment Earnings 3,000 - 381 381
Total revenues 458,000 274,000 382,849 108,849
EXPENDITURES
Contractual services 259,100 259,100 44,339 214,761
Capital outlay 70,000,000 40,000,000 639,000 39,361,000
Debt Service 198,900 198,900 165,358 33,542
Total expenditures 70,458,000 40,458,000 848,697 39,609,303
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (70,000,000) (40,184,000) (465,848) 39,718,152
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond issuance 70,000,000 40,000,000 750,000 (39,250,000)
Bond issuance costs - - (45,000) (45,000)
Total other financing sources and uses 70,000,000 40,000,000 705,000 (39,295,000)
Net change in fund balance - (184,000) 239,152 423,152
Fund balance - beginning of year - 184,000 112,897 (71,103)
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 352,049 $ 352,049
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Municipal Airport Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Investment earnings $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ 1,829 $ (4,171)
Rental and sale of city property 2,468,300 916,800 1,297,773 380,973
Miscellaneous 3,000 3,000 450 (2,550)
Total revenues 2,477,300 925,800 1,300,052 374,252
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Personal services 196,200 208,200 207,525 675
Contractual services 27,100 36,100 34,986 1,114
Materials and supplies 956,600 1,066,600 1,066,185 415
Capital outlay 1,150,000 1,019,000 - 1,019,000
Debt service 107,000 107,000 106,984 16
Total expenditures 2,436,900 2,436,900 1,415,680 1,021,220
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 40,400 (1,511,100) (115,628) 1,395,472
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out (40,400) (40,400) (40,400) -
Total other financing sources and uses (40,400) (40,400) (40,400) -
Net change in fund balance - (1,551,500) (156,028) 1,395,472
Fund balance - beginning of year - 1,551,500 255,987 (1,295,513)
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 99,959 $ 99,959
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Parks Development Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Investment earnings $ 4,800 $ 4,800 $ 8,211 $ 3,411
Rental and sale of City property 37,000 37,000 30,705 (6,295)
Miscellaneous 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Total revenues 66,800 66,800 63,916 (2,884)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation:
Contractual services 20,000 32,000 31,484 516
Materials and supplies - 13,000 12,837 163
Capital outlay 46,800 21,800 - 21,800
Total expenditures 66,800 66,800 44,321 22,479
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 19,595 19,595
Fund balance - beginning of year - - 771,467 771,467
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 791,062 $ 791,062
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Community Arts Reserve Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Contributions and Donations $ - $ - $ 17,000 $ 17,000
Investment earnings 500 500 33 (467)
Total revenues 500 500 17,033 16,533
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Contractual services 5,500 1,200 849 351
Capital outlay 20,000 18,500 7,440 11,060
Total expenditures 25,500 21,200 13,835 7,365
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (25,000) (20,700) 3,198 23,898
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Total other financing sources and uses 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
Net change in fund balance (20,000) (15,700) 8,198 23,898
Fund balance - beginning of year 20,000 15,700 2,257 (13,443)
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 10,455 $ 10,455
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Redevelopment/Downtown Revitalization Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Local taxes $ 230,000 $ 230,000 $ 337,491 $ 107,491
Investment earnings 50,000 50,000 16,453 (33,547)
Rental and sale of city property 11,000 11,000 - (11,000)
Total revenues 291,000 291,000 353,944 62,944
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic development:
Contractual services 110,000 100,000 13,401 86,599
Materials and supplies 16,000 16,000 1,030 14,970
Capital outlay 1,769,500 1,769,500 321,496 1,448,004
Total expenditures 1,895,500 1,885,500 335,927 1,549,573
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (1,604,500) (1,594,500) 18,017 1,612,517
Fund balance - beginning of year 1,604,500 1,594,500 2,277,791 683,291
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 2,295,808 $ 2,295,808
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Promotion and Tourism Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Local taxes $ 89,000 $ 100,000 $ 243,416 $ 143,416
Investment earnings - - 1,615 1,615
Total revenues 89,000 100,000 245,031 145,031
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 89,000 100,000 100,000 -
Total expenditures 89,000 100,000 100,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 145,031 145,031
Fund balance - beginning of year - - 210,038 210,038
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 355,069 $ 355,069

85



To Table of Contents

City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Court Enhancement/Probationary Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Intergovernmental $ 6,500 $ 6,500 $ 8,463 $ 1,963
Charges for services 51,500 51,500 71,455 19,955
Investment earnings 10,000 10,000 3,428 (6,572)
Total revenues 68,000 68,000 83,346 15,346
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety:
Contractual services 65,500 65,500 - 65,500
Capital outlay 416,000 416,000 - 416,000
Total expenditures 481,500 481,500 - 481,500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (413,500) (413,500) 83,346 496,846
Fund balance - beginning of year 413,500 413,500 428,632 15,132
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 511,978 $ 511,978
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Housing Application and Development Fees Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Charges for service $ 250,000 $ 250,000 $ 11,598 $ (238,402)
Intergovernmental 550,000 550,000 - (550,000)
Investment earnings 6,000 6,000 764 (5,236)
Loan fees - - 2,154 2,154
Total revenues 806,000 806,000 14,516 (791,484)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Economic development:
Personal services 50,000 50,000 40 49,960
Contractual services 756,000 756,000 3,660 752,340
Total expenditures 806,000 806,000 3,700 802,300
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 10,816 10,816
Fund balance - beginning of year - - 165,794 165,794
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 176,610 $ 176,610
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REVENUES
Investment earnings
Contributions

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety activities
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Fund balance - beginning of year
Fund balance - end of year

City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Public Safety Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative)

$ 900 900 $ 205 $ (695)
22,200 22,200 24,171 1,971

23,100 23,100 24,376 1,276

23,100 23,100 19,927 3,173

23,100 23,100 19,927 3,173

- - 4,449 4,449

- - 28,450 28,450

$ - - $ 32,899 $ 32,899
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Redevelopment Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Total revenues $ - $ - $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Contractual services 15,500 15,500 2,699 12,801
Debt service:
Principal 195,000 195,000 195,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges 109,500 109,500 109,476 24
Total expenditures 320,000 320,000 307,175 12,825
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (320,000) (320,000) (307,175) 12,825
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 320,000 320,000 320,000 -
Total other financing sources and uses 320,000 320,000 320,000 -
Net change in fund balance - - 12,825 12,825
Fund balance - beginning of year - - 17,691 17,691
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ 30,516 $ 30,516
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Recreation Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive

REVENUES Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Local taxes $ 600,000 $ 600,000 $ 565,036 $ (34,964)
Investment earnings 75,800 75,800 16,224 (59,576)

Total revenues 675,800 675,800 581,260 (94,540)
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Contractual services 247,700 247,700 - 247,700
Debt Service:

Principal retirement 300,000 3,053,000 2,825,010 227,990

Interest 128,100 128,100 128,100 -

Total expenditures 675,800 3,428,800 2,953,110 475,690

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - (2,753,000) (2,371,850) 381,150

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out - - (227,134) (227,134)

Total other financing uses - - (227,134) (227,134)

Net change in fund balance - - (2,598,984) 154,016

Fund balance - beginning of year - 2,753,000 2,598,984 (154,016)
Fund balance - end of year $ - $ - $ - $ -
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Airport Improvement Capital Projects Fund

City of Casa Grande, Arizona

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Contractual services
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning of year
Fund balance - end of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 1,530,000 $ 1,530,000 $ 201,840 $ (1,328,160)
1,530,000 1,530,000 201,840 (1,328,160)
1,530,000 1,530,000 281,162 1,248,838
1,530,000 1,530,000 281,162 1,248,838
- - (79,322) (79,322)
- - 10,000 10,000
- - 10,000 10,000
- - (69,322) (69,322)
- - 76,250 76,250
$ - $ - $ 6,928 $ 6,928
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Copper Mountain Ranch Water Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Operations - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
OPERATING REVENUES:
Service fees $ 151,000 $ 151,000 $ 196,410 $ 45,410
Total operating revenues 151,000 151,000 196,410 45,410
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services 33,700 50,700 50,623 77
Contractual 44,900 44,900 9,174 35,726
Materials and supplies 71,100 71,100 43,874 27,226
Depreciation 2,200,000 2,138,000 44,540 2,093,460
Total operating expenses 2,349,700 2,304,700 148,211 2,156,489
Operating Income (2,198,700) (2,153,700) 48,199 2,201,899
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Interest expense (15,100) (4,900) (4,936) (36)
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) (15,100) (4,900) (4,936) (36)
Income (loss) before transfers (2,213,800) (2,158,600) 43,263 2,201,863
Transfers out (27,400) (27,400) (27,400) -
Net change in net assets (2,241,200) (2,186,000) 15,863 2,201,863
Net Assets - beginning of year 2,241,200 2,186,000 1,365,032 (820,968)
Net Assets - end of year $ - $ - $ 1,380,895 $ 1,380,895
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Wastewater Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operations - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

OPERATING REVENUES:
Service fees
Connection fees
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services
Contractual
Materials and supplies
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating Income
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Interest income
Interest expense
City sales tax
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers out

Net change in net assets

Net Assets - beginning of year
Net Assets - end of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-

Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,760,000 $ 2,760,000 $ 3933465 $ 1,173,465
280,000 50,000 20,075 (29,925)
46,500 46,500 20,081 (26,419)
3,086,500 2,856,500 3,973,621 1,117,121
871,900 871,900 784,032 87,868
3,152,800 592,600 586,678 5,922
747,600 812,600 812,071 529
880,200 1,774,000 1,773,381 619
5,652,500 4,051,100 3,956,162 94,938
(2,566,000) (1,194,600) 17,459 1,212,059
230,000 230,000 46,126 (183,874)
(130,000) (652,000) (651,039) 961
100,000 (422,000) (604,913) (182,913)
(2,466,000) (1,616,600) (587,454) 1,029,146
- - 717,407 717,407
(173,300) (175,550) (175,548) 2
(2,639,300) (1,792,150) (45,595) 1,746,555
2,639,300 1,792,150 35,675,989 33,883,839
$ - $ $ 35630,394 $ 35,630,394
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OPERATING REVENUES:
Connection fees
Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating Income
NONOPERATING REVENUE :
Interest income
Total nonoperating revenue
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers out

Net change in net assets

Net Assets - beginning of year
Net Assets - end of year

City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Wastewater Development Fees Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Operations - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 3,062,000 $ 3062000 $ 1166246 $ (1,895,754)
3,062,000 3,062,000 1,166,246 (1,895,754)
3,662,000 3,662,000 3,588 3,658,412
3,662,000 3,662,000 3,588 3,658,412
(600,000) (600,000) 1,162,658 1,762,658
600,000 600,000 135,823 (464,177)
600,000 600,000 135,823 (464,177)
- - 1,298,481 1,298,481
- - 1,298,481 1,298,481
- - 19,072,538 19,072,538
$ - $ $ 20,371,019 $ 20,371,019
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Sanitation/Development Enterprise Fund
Schedule of Operations - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
OPERATING REVENUES:
Service fees $ 5,217,600 $ 5,217,600 $ 4,326,086 $ (891,514)
Recycling revenue 345,500 245,000 146,581 (98,419)
Impact fees - - 83,260 83,260
Miscellaneous 10,000 10,000 15,046 5,046
Total operating revenues 5,573,100 5,472,600 4,570,973 (901,627)
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services 2,448,400 2,542,400 2,541,812 588
Contractual 1,065,300 1,052,300 997,426 54,874
Materials and supplies 1,295,900 925,600 925,376 224
Depreciation 559,000 450,752 421,551 29,201
Closure and postclosure costs 300,000 575,000 574,424 576
Total operating expenses 5,668,600 5,546,052 5,460,589 85,463
Operating Income (95,500) (73,452) (889,616) (816,164)
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Gain on sale of assets - - 98,600 98,600
Interest income 90,500 90,000 20,067 (69,933)
Interest expense (129,200) (7,700) (5,319) 2,381
Total nonoperating revenue (expense) (38,700) 82,300 113,348 31,048
Income before transfers (134,200) 8,848 (776,268) (785,116)
Transfers in - - 1,284,222 1,284,222
Transfers out (1,081,600) (1,083,848) (1,083,848) -
Net change in net assets (1,215,800) (1,075,000) (575,894) 499,106
Net Assets - beginning of year 1,215,800 1,075,000 3,102,310 2,027,310
Net Assets - end of year $ - $ - $ 2,526,416 $ 2,526,416
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Golf Course Enterprise Fund

Schedule of Operations - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

OPERATING REVENUES:
Rental
Green fees
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services
Contractual
Materials and supplies
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating Income

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE):

City sales tax
Total nonoperating revenue

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year
Net assets - end of year

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 200,700 200,700 $ 122,626 $ (78,074)
725,000 725,000 839,250 114,250
10,000 10,000 190,163 180,163
935,700 935,700 1,152,039 216,339
577,300 577,300 513,556 63,744
37,300 127,300 127,199 101
502,100 516,100 515,120 980
2,000,000 112,000 111,111 889
3,116,700 1,332,700 1,266,986 65,714
(2,181,000) (397,000) (114,947) 282,053
9,500 9,500 20,612 11,112
9,500 9,500 20,612 11,112
(2,171,500) (387,500) (94,335) 293,165
300,000 300,000 694,500 394,500
(128,500) (128,500) (128,500) -
394,500
(2,000,000) (216,000) 471,665 687,665
2,000,000 216,000 441,461 225,461
$ - - $ 913,126 $ 913,126
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule By Source
June 30, 2009

Governmental funds capital assets:
Land and construction in progress $
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Heavy machinery and equipment
Operational equipment

33,044,946
19,196,113
181,481,964
1,765,636
18,633,778

Total governmental funds capital assets $

254,122,437

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source:
General obligation bonds $
Grants
General Fund revenues
Special Revenue Fund revenues
Capital Project Funds
Gifts and donations

459,863
1,529,993
12,935,170
108,806,544
31,376,602
99,014,265

Total investments in governmental funds capital assets $

254,122,437

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Changes By Function and Activity

For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

General General

Capital Assets Adjustments/ Capital Assets

Function and Activity June 30, 2008 Additions Disposals June 30, 2009
General government $ 9,215,668 $ 824,498 $ - $ 10,040,166
Public safety 12,645,580 3,663,737 (575,835) 15,733,482
Streets/Transportation 168,628,740 13,218,697 (66,660) 181,780,777
Public works 1,645,925 64,517 - 1,710,442
Culture and recreation 12,893,535 13,673,214 (95,150) 26,471,599
Economic development 17,900,638 485,333 18,385,971
Total $ 222,930,086 $ 31,929,996 $ (737,645) $ 254,122,437

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the
capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the
capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of net

assets.
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Casa Grande's comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures and required supplementary information says
about the City's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 100
how the City's financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.

Revenue Capacity 107

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
factors affecting the City's ability to generate its sales and property taxes.

Debt Capacity 109
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's
ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 115
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the City's financial
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with
other governments.

Operating Information 117
These schedules contain information about the City's operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the City's financial
information relates to the services the City provides and the activities
it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented
GASB Statement 34 in 2003; schedules presenting government-wide information
include information beginning in that year.

99



To Table of Contents

Schedule 1
City of Casa Grande
Net Assets by Component
Last Seven Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

June 30

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt ~ $ 21,646,269  $ 24,413490  $ 28,136,615 $ 74,265,031 $ 121,397,151 $ 144,539,605

Restricted 7,492,999 13,846,429 25,705,254 39,505,454 61,600,770 77,352,432
Unrestricted 3,935,234 5,857,139 10,880,929 17,574,060 24,880,238 29,930,330
Total governmental activities net assets $ 33074502 $ 44,117,058 $ 64,722,798 $ 131,344545 $ 207,878,159  $ 251,822,367

Business-type activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt ~ $ 15,329,786 $ 9,650,425  $ 19,179454 § 27,728,464 $ 29,545,366 $ 33,189,049

Restricted 1,983,310 11,289,359 7,202,857 11,541,534 15,292,233 19,276,562

Unrestricted 97,231 1,030,876 4,985,723 8,492,036 9,374,364 7,191,725
Total business-type activities net assets $ 17410327 $21970660 $ 31,368,034 $ 47,762,034 $ 54211963 $ 59,657,336
Primary government

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt ~ $ 36,976,055  $ 34,063,915  $ 47,316,069 $ 101993495 $ 150942517 $ 177,728,654

Restricted 9,476,309 25,135,788 32,908,111 51,046,988 76,893,003 96,628,994

Unrestricted 4,032,465 6,888,015 15,866,652 26,066,096 34,254,602 37,122,055
Total primary government net assets $ 50,484,829  $ 66,087,718 $ 96,090,832 $ 179,106579 $ 262,090,122  $ 311,479,703

Note: The City began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003.
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Governmental Activities:
Expenses
General government
Public safety
Streets/Transportation
Public works
Culture and recreation
Economic development
Interest on long-term debt
Total expenses

Program Revenues
Charges for services:
General government
Public safety
Streets/Transportation
Public works
Culture and recreation
Development fees
Building permits
Development and engineering
Other economic development
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total program revenues

Total Governmental Activities Net Program Expense

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Shared revenues:
State sales taxes
Urban revenue sharing
Auto-in-lieu
Investment earnings
Gain on sales of assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers
Total general revenues and other changes in net assets

Total Governmental Activities Change in Net Assets

Schedule 2
City of Casa Grande
Changes in Net Assets
Last Seven Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

June 30
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
$ 3627359 $ 4117835 $ 4100221 $ 4463957 $ 5196569 $ 6,958,153
9,888,543 10732674 11789718 13504033 14765435 17,799,896
2,702,484 2042777 3,437,830 5,486,251 9,650,354 10,614,899
697,449 765,497 778,974 1,868,890 2,144,675 1,652,940
3,778,926 4,078,279 4,147,490 4,978,247 5,247,404 5,853,610
2,289,429 2,422,140 2,716,784 4,468,076 5,564,781 5,932,564
540,921 499,031 477,956 500,879 610,630 641,914
23525111 25558233 27448973 35270333 43179848 49453976
102,276 113317 109,340 119,514 133,192 144,550
823,583 810,216 904,202 984,555 1,091,960 1,214,170
142,848 424,308 505,948 832,940 996,571 1,345,035
28,440 11,632 2,273,085 84,424 33,994 100,784
303,358 288,714 285,592 340,272 328,163 378,268
1,511,684 2,139,152 4667542 11353338 13115223 8,272,278
959,975 1,263,355 2,017,707 3,468,682 2,580,633 1,692,576
583,532 430,876 1,876,291 3,357,825 2,456,074 694,385
213613 572,326 795,721 1,282,294 863,185 627,986
4,584,394 4,993,835 5,834,031 7,866,501 9,066,924 9,303,041
4,312,801 4,199,412 6372598 43675183 14852514 22,402,954
13,566,504 15247143 25642057 73365528 45518433  46,176527
$ (9958,607) $ (10,311,000 $ (1,806916) § 38,095195 $ 2338585 $ (3,277.449)
1,536,606 1,799,803 2,333,638 2,401,386 2,475,296 3,105,864
9,477,906 10573489 12004301 14973622 22708648 28,082,890
850,839 899,604 954,853 1,236,366 1,511,751 1,687,014
1972,714 2,122,100 2,336,759 2,721,554 3,086,185 2,084,122
2,650,450 2218117 2,345,507 2,728,207 3,760,034 4,592,697
999,433 1,189,494 1,221,188 1,585,116 2,032,801 2,199,266
(163,059) 124,545 466,925 1,508,717 3202176 3,202,760
201,721 (77,414) 414,900 660,798 1,846,201 452,603
200,444 277,201 145,585 361,586 274,310 388,409
(26,617) 1,341,083 99,000 349,200 449,800 525,942
17,720 437 2052802 2041265 28526552 41367200  47,021657
$ 7761830 $ 10216932 $ 20605740 $ 66621747 $ 43705787 $ 43,944,208

Note: The City began to report accrual information when it implemented GASB Statement 34 in fiscal year 2003.
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Business-type Activities:
Expenses
Water
Golf course
Wastewater
Sanitation
Total expenses

Revenues
Charges for services:
Water
Golf course
Wastewater
Sanitation
Sales taxes
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Capital grants and contributions
Total revenues

Total Business-type Activities Net Program Expense

Other Changes in Net Assets
Transfers

Total Business-type Activities Change in Net Assets

Total Primary Government Change in Net Assets

Schedule 3
City of Casa Grande
Changes in Net Assets
Last Seven Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

June 30

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
$ 197109 $ 142327 $ 158397 $ 98,048 $ 115599 § 117,638
698,909 716,703 844,434 928,321 1,107,942 967,750
2,465,665 2,981,091 2,487,685 3,138,128 5,413,331 4,522,025
2,638,820 2,797,052 3,148,693 3,538,650 3,902,782 4,041,517
6,000,503 6,637,173 6,639,209 7,103,147 10,539,654 9,648,930
194,782 193,006 186,225 197,834 193,909 190,125
420,799 433,686 584,429 781,464 784,983 797,501
2,767,417 3,703,613 7,618,055 7,533,801 6,001,607 5,972,329
2,687,498 3,056,414 3,804,163 4,571,127 4,963,964 4,990,169
1,681,957 1,885,485 2,150,452 2,676,631 2,124,036 14,203
(77,534) 88,214 183,584 635,533 1,167,957 919,273
7,157 1,895,607 47,086 58,502 73411 155,834
1,099,166 1,136,713 1,561,589 7,991,457 2,129,515 2,580,813
8,781,242 12,392,738 16,135,583 24,446,349 17,439,382 15,620,247
$ 2,780,739 $ 5755565 $ 9496374 § 16743202 $ 6,899,728 $ 5971317
26,617 (1,341,083) (99,000) (349,200 (449,800) (525,942)
$ 2807356 $ 4414482 $ 9397374 $ 16,394,002 $ 6,449,928 $ 5445375
$ 10,569,186 $ 14,631,414 $ 30,003,114 $ 83,015,749 $ 50,155,715 $ 49,389,583
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General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved

Total general fund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds
Total all other governmental funds

City of Casa Grande

Schedule 4

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
$ 139,262 $ 143,871 $ 176,526 $ 486,826 801,965
4,915,566 4,422,980 3,338,675 3,823,320 6,343,317
$ 5,054,828 $ 4,566,851 $ 3,515,201 $ 4,310,146 7,145,282
$ 4,096,314 $ 2,186,274 $ 2,311,916 $ 2,341,307 2,368,606
3,181,985 2,761,029 3,758,330 4,328,235 9,013,364
539,713 1,406,775 1,214,043 372,078 1,066,167
$ 7,818,012 $ 6,354,078 $ 7,284,289 $ 7,041,620 12,448,137
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Fiscal Year
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
$ 1,115,310 $ 1,476,273 $ 1,959,234 $ 2,548,121 $ 3,153,554
11,150,642 17,796,454 25,521,015 30,572,472 30,402,947
$ 12,265,952 $ 19,272,727 $ 27,480,249 $ 33,120,593 $ 33,556,501
$ 6,252,078 $ 4,250,108 $ 4,413,184 $ 32,896,933  $ 25,327,803
15,594,386 28,612,756 43,633,806 49,835,900 39,794,807
2,479,265 5,365,147 10,701,962 77,406 8,084
$ 24,325,729 $ 38,228,011 $ 58,748,952 $ 82,810,239 $ 65,130,694
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Schedule 5
City of Casa Grande
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Revenues
Taxes $ 9,647,104 $ 10,500,552 $ 10,565,836 $ 11,851,114  $ 13,294,993
Licenses and permits 644,487 895,927 801,910 1,074,991 1,385,080
Intergovernmental revenues 9,361,703 11,303,184 10,763,681 10,358,329 10,902,234
Charges for services 760,096 974,559 1,578,990 2,528,275 3,221,772
Fines 772,079 628,857 801,690 690,177 677,048
Special assessments 588,862 309,163 244,872 211,787 137,644
Investment earnings 649,120 565,660 233,207 (163,059) 124,545
Rental and sale of city property 288,542 418,879 405,717 536,538 738,198
Other revenues 216,622 352,902 231,348 274,985 473,864
Total revenues 22,928,615 25,949,683 25,627,251 27,363,137 30,955,378
Expenditures
General government 2,753,142 3,348,830 3,689,262 3,641,912 4,451,216
Public safety 7,502,776 8,237,440 9,639,754 9,499,759 10,309,036
Streets/Transportation 1,446,023 1,956,566 1,798,580 1,987,200 1,672,165
Public works 797,824 766,460 777,291 657,785 730,486
Culture and recreation 2,669,541 3,076,334 3,349,200 3,352,211 3,450,403
Planning and economic development 1,352,047 2,859,626 2,238,132 1,871,266 1,952,308
Capital outlay 7,716,638 6,307,819 2,593,601 4,472,441 1,939,318
Debt service

Principal 1,003,291 979,300 956,448 932,344 960,801

Interest 571,129 465,622 620,054 559,527 471,539
Total expenditures 25,812,411 27,997,997 25,662,322 26,974,445 25,937,272
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 1,874,832 2,391,189 1,010,817 1,618,327 2,919,819
Transfers out (1,659,139) (2,649,899) (1,097,185) (1,644,944) (1,578,736)
Capital leases 2,001,127 369,137 - 150,000 1,056,839
Bond issuance - - - - -
Bond issuance costs - - - - -
Sale of land
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,216,820 110,427 (86,368) 123,383 2,397,922
Net change in fund balances $ (666,976) $ (1,937,887) $ (121,439) $ 512,075 $ 7,416,028
Debt service as a percentage of

noncapital expenditures Not Available*  Not Available*  Not Available* 6.63% 5.97%

*Prior to implementation of GASB 34 in 2003, the Capital outlay number from the CAFR may not include all capital asset

purchases.
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Fiscal Year

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
$ 15,388,557 $ 18,585,602 $ 26,706,698 $ 32,840,670 $ 31,334,264
2,156,170 3,632,214 2,756,899 1,881,951 808,414
11,911,931 15,208,404 18,007,273 20,798,409 17,188,146
9,853,065 16,390,930 16,678,803 10,171,890 2,188,466
739,283 734,495 826,533 815,081 1,092,331
217,895 354,840 28,907 29,691 21,092
466,925 1,508,717 3,222,176 3,202,760 815,213
701,633 1,071,511 1,459,760 1,546,935 1,645,235
720,093 1,198,605 720,635 608,700 536,204
42,155,552 58,685,318 70,407,684 71,896,087 55,629,365
4,300,175 5,230,006 5,921,449 8,076,361 8,996,033
11,344,629 12,957,767 14,155,865 16,983,507 18,594,022
1,908,050 2,168,597 2,846,301 2,323,097 2,991,139
734,391 1,650,860 2,063,253 1,684,699 1,716,458
3,654,964 4,446,967 4,828,294 5,463,871 5,222,719
2,242,438 3,914,867 4,821,056 4,965,772 3,425,837
4,526,914 6,149,634 8,251,421 11,030,175 27,511,902
799,546 1,206,388 882,247 1,226,548 5,313,821
477,428 484,775 707,501 607,351 955,207
29,988,535 38,209,861 44,477,387 52,361,381 74,727,138
2,686,632 5,808,434 6,844,898 8,101,980 5,630,797
(2,530,831) (5,374,834) (6,311,098) (7,483,839) (5,922,924)

3,500,000 - - -

1,335,000 - 455,000 9,000,000 750,000
(159,557) - - (30,201) (103,736)
1,809,371 578,989 1,500,000
4,831,244 433,600 2,798,171 10,166,929 1,854,137
$ 16,998,260 $ 20,909,057 $ 28,728,468 $ 29,701,636 $ (17,243,635)
5.02% 5.27% 4.30% 4.44% 13.28%
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Schedule 6
City of Casa Grande
Sales Tax Revenue by Industry,
Fiscal Years 2009, 2008, 2007,2006 and 2005

Fiscal Year 2005 Fiscal Year 2006
Percentage Percentage
Tax Paid of Total Tax Paid of Total
Construction $ 2,187,722 15.36% $ 3,164,234 17.93%
Manufacture 497,382 3.49% 599,880 3.40%
Transportation/Communication/

Utilities 1,220,019 8.56% 1,470,192 8.33%
Wholesale Trade 195,610 1.37% 211,865 1.20%
Retail Trade 7,027,208 49.33% 8,377,108 47.46%
Restaurants/Bars 923,817 6.49% 1,021,869 5.79%
Insurance/Real Estate 1,485,089 10.43% 1,732,572 9.82%
Hotels/Lodging 275,550 1.93% 316,538 1.79%
Services 373,228 2.62% 427,755 2.42%
All Other 59,128 0.42% 328,240 1.86%
Total $ 14,244,753 100.00% $ 17,650,253 100.00%

Source: Arizona State Department of Revenue

Note:
The categories presented are intended to provide alternative information regarding the sources
of the City's revenue. Information prior to 2005 is not available.

*Construction sales tax rate changed from 1.8% to 4% effective June 15, 2006
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Fiscal Year 2007 Fiscal Year 2008 Fiscal Year 2009

Percentage Percentage Percentage

Tax Paid of Total Tax Paid of Total Tax Paid of Total
$ 8,405,855 33.85% $ 11,087,874 39.17% $ 6,722,392 28.81%
624,116 2.51% 750,711 2.65% 597,311 2.56%
0.00% 0.00%
1,762,783 7.10% 1,987,604 7.02% 1,761,603 7.55%
271,980 1.10% 233,859 0.83% 277,315 1.19%
8,778,705 35.35% 9,562,653 33.78% 9,585,867 41.08%
1,027,918 4.14% 1,118,248 3.95% 1,221,532 5.23%
2,122,802 8.55% 2,052,131 7.25% 1,869,128 8.01%
348,177 1.40% 316,241 1.12% 462,489 1.98%
521,470 2.10% 546,058 1.93% 560,571 2.40%
968,878 3.90% 652,605 2.31% 276,032 1.18%
$ 24,832,684 100.00% $ 28,307,984 100.00% $ 23,334,240 100.00%
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Schedule 7
City of Casa Grande
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates

6/30/2009
Rates
State and
Type of Tax City Pinal County Combined

Privilege tax, except retail, utilities and

telecommunication 1.80% 6.70% 8.50%
Retail 2.00% 6.70% 8.70%
Retail - privilege tax for single item

over $5000 1.50% 6.70% 8.20%
Hotel/Motel 3.80% 6.70% 10.50%
Restaurant/Bar 1.80% 6.70% 8.50%
Utilities/Telecommunications 2.00% 6.70% 8.70%
Construction * 4.00% 6.70% 10.70%

Sources: City of Casa Grande Finance Department and Arizona Department of Revenue

*Changed from 1.8% effective 6/15/2006
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Schedule 8
City of Casa Grande
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities

Street & Excise
General Hwy User Tax Special

Fiscal Obligation Revenue Revenue Assessment Capital

Year Bonds Bonds Obligations Bonds Leases Mortgages
2000 - - 9,870,000 1,170,000 1,042,071 265,000
2001 - - 9,435,000 955,000 1,130,019 119,472
2002 - - 8,980,000 870,000 761,093 -
2003 - - 8,495,000 780,000 566,744 -
2004 - - 8,138,000 685,000 1,236,062 -
2005 1,335,000 - 7,688,583 585,000 4,485,933 -
2006 1,335,000 - 7,217,943 480,000 4,029,980 -
2007 1,790,000 - 6,721,488 370,000 3,754,188 -
2008 10,775,000 - 6,199,218 255,000 3,180,356 -
2009 9,739,549 - 3,130,318 130,000 2,909,161 -

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the financial statements.

(a) See Schedule 13 for personal income and
population data.

Personal income is based on Pinal County information.
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Business-type Activities

Excise
General Tax Total Percentage
Obligation Revenue Capital Notes Primary of Personal
Bonds Obligations Leases Payable Government Income (a)
- 8,785,000 638,216 - 21,770,287 4.84%
- 8,220,000 1,162,818 - 21,022,309 4.33%
- 7,625,000 787,125 203,193 19,226,411 3.94%
- 7,005,000 459,286 178,170 17,484,200 3.21%
- 15,926,820 404,534 178,170 26,568,586 4.32%
- 15,426,237 593,795 177,300 30,291,848 4.22%
- 14,911,877 408,291 168,069 28,551,160 3.59%
- 14,388,332 295,899 158,520 27,478,427 3.12%
2,000,000 13,855,602 179,122 148,643 36,592,941 3.61%
1,605,451 13,304,502 57,790 4,352,312 35,229,083 3.16%
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Schedule 9

City of Casa Grande
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Five Fiscal Years

Percentage of

General Estimated Estimated General
Fiscal Obligation Actual Value Actual Value Bonded Debt
Year Bonds of Property (a) of Property Per Capita (b)
2005 $ 1,335,000 1,942,707 68.72% $ N/A
2006 1,335,000 8,183,338 16.31% N/A
2007 1,790,000 39,939,824 4.48% 1,584
2008 1,775,000 (1) 93,675,428 1.89% 664
2008 11,000,000 (2) 2,295,221,460 0.48% 267
2009 2,515,000 (1) 167,571,141 1.50% 836
2009 8,830,000 (2) 2,928,179,559 0.30% 196
(a) Source: Pinal County Assessor's records
(b) Estimated population of Mission Royale CFD 6/30/09 1,970
Estimated population of Villago CFD 6/30/09 1,040

(1) General obligation bonds were issued by the Mission Royale Community

Provided by Sales Offices.
2007

No population data are available for years prior to

Population of Casa Grande

45,116

Facilities District in 2005 and the Villago Community Facilities District in 2006 and 2008.

These bonds will be repaid by the property owners within the CFDs and are

obligations of the districts only.
(2) General obligation bonds were issued by the City of Casa Grande in June, 2008
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Schedule 10
City of Casa Grande
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
As of June 30, 2009

Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit QOutstanding Applicable Debt
Pinal County $ 172,129,000 13.91% $ 23,934,703
School District #4 25,375,000 75.45% 19,144,807
School District #82 37,940,000 55.56% 21,079,122
Central Arizona Community College 15,815,000 13.91% 2,199,091
Mission Royale CFD 1,335,000 100.00% 1,335,000
Villago CFD 1,180,000 100.00% 1,180,000
Subtotal, overlapping debt 68,872,723
City direct debt 13,394,028
Total direct and overlapping debt $ 82,266,751

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by Pinal

County Assessor's Office. Debt outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

Notes: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic
boundaries of the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those
overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of Casa Grande. This
process recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term
debt, the entire burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.
However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for

repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property
values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of Pinal County's
taxable assessed value that is within the government's boundaries and dividing it by the County's

total taxable assessed value.
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Schedule 11
City of Casa Grande
Legal Debt Margin Information
June 30, 2009

Net Secondary Assessed Valuation as of June 30, 2009 $439,085,421
Debt limit (6% of assessed value) 26,345,125
Debt applicable to limit:

General obligation bonds 3,610,300
Legal 6% debt margin $ 22,734,825
Debt limit (20% of assessed value) 87,817,084
Debt applicable to limit:

General obligation bonds 5,219,700
Legal 20% debt margin $ 82,597,384

Note: The City issued General Obligation bonds for $11,000,000 in June, 2008.
No retroactive reporting of the legal debt margin is provided because the City
had no prior general obligation debt since 1997.
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Schedule 12
City of Casa Grande
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Special Assessment Bonds Excise Tax Revenue Obligations
Special Pledged

Fiscal  Assessment Debt Service Revenue Debt Service

Year Collections  Principal  Interest Coverage Collected (a) Principal Interest Coverage
2000 204,394 142,500 25,320 1.22 19,967,133 945,000 1,058,859 9.96
2001 308,629 215,000 37,785 1.22 23,176,964 1,000,000 1,010,013 11.53
2002 290,054 85,000 51,570 212 22,402,363 1,050,000 957,807 11.16
2003 174,365 90,000 56,147 1.19 23,444,022 1,105,000 901,980 11.68
2004 137,642 95,000 42,120 1.00 25,645,893 1,165,000 594,321 14.58
2005 217,895 100,000 36,990 159 29,267,707 950,001 1,054,202 14.60
2006 354,840 105,000 31,590 2.60 37,727,237 985,000 1,022,252 18.80
2007 28,907 110,000 25,920 0.21 44,984,571 1,020,000 987,632 22.41
2008 29,691 115,000 19,980 0.22 52,450,264 1,070,000 1,039,517 24.86
2009 21,092 135,000 17,280 0.14 43,338,764 3,630,000 (b) 1,008,269 9.34

Notes: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(a) The 1997and 2003 revenue obligations are secured by a pledge of and first lien on all excise, transaction,
franchise, privilege and business taxes, state shared sales and income taxes, fees for licenses and permits and
state revenue sharing which the City presently or in the future validly imposes or receives from other entities.

(b) Includes $10,000 principal and $96,872 interest for Community Facilities District debt payments.
Also includes $2,825,000 to retire the Recreation Facility 1999 excise revenue tax obligation.
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Schedule 13
City of Casa Grande
Demographic and Economic Statistics,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

County
Per Capita Total

Fiscal Personal Personal School Unemployment
Year Population Income Income Enrollment Rate
2000 26,490 16,994 450,171,060 7,442 3.90%
2001 27,815 17,436 484,982,340 7,680 4.20%
2002 27,290 17,889 488,190,810 7,784 6.80%
2003 29,715 18,354 545,389,110 7,895 6.20%
2004 31,315 19,646 615,214,490 8,120 5.00%
2005 34,260 20,959 718,055,340 8,930 5.20%
2006 36,450 21,800 794,610,000 9,049 5.10%
2007 38,785 22,672 879,333,520 10,290 4.30%
2008 42,422 23,905 1,014,097,910 11,066 6.10%
2009 45,116 25,000 1,127,900,000 11,652 11.10%

Sources: Population, County Per Capita Income and City Unemployment Rate - Arizona

Department of Commerce and Arizona Department of Economic Security. School

Enrollment - Casa Grande Elementary and Casa Grande Union High School Districts.
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Schedule 14

City of Casa Grande
Principal Employers,
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2009 (a) 2000 (b)

Percentage Percentage

of Total City of Total City

Employer Employees Employment  Employees Employment
Casa Grande Elementary School District 1050 5.38% 625 4.52%
Casa Grande Regional Medical Center 850 4.35% 788 5.70%
Wal-Mart Distribution Center 569 2.91% - 0.00%
Wal-Mart Supermarket 450 2.31% - 0.00%
Frito-Lay Inc. 450 2.31% 302 2.19%
City of Casa Grande 439 2.25% 251 1.82%
Abbott Laboratories/Ross Products 400 2.05% 397 2.87%
Hexcel Corporation 350 1.79% 562 4.07%
Casa Grande Valley Newspapers 150 0.77% 100 0.72%
4,708 24.12% 2,400 17.37%

Sources: (a) Casa Grande Valley Economic Development Foundation; various employers; AZ Dept of
Economic Security (b) Casa Grande Valley Economic Development Foundation, July 2000; AZ Dept of

Economic Security

Note: July, 2000 is the earliest year for which both employer and labor force information are available.
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Schedule 15
City of Casa Grande

Authorized City Government Employee Positions by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program
Police,

Fiscal General City Attorney Culture and  Planning and Public

Year Government and Court Fire Recreation  Development Works Total
2000 22 88.5 27 39 15.75 61 253.25
2001 24.5 915 27 43 16 66 268.00
2002 26 93.5 30 43 17 76 285.50
2003 22.75 98.5 33 44 17 80 295.25
2004 23 97.5 37 44 17 80 298.50
2005 24 103.5 38 44 19 79 307.50
2006 26 107.5 41 44 22 84.25 324.75
2007 30 123.05 54.75 48 26.5 96.25 378.55
2008 39.25 139 60.5 61.25 34.5 104.5 439.00
2009 39.5 137.23 62.08 61.75 34 104.5 439.06

Source: City Budget

Note: Information is based on authorized positions.
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Schedule 16
City of Casa Grande
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
Function/Program 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
General government
Registered voters 11,441 11441 11441 13685 13,685 15919 13239 13946 19,331 20,805
Votes cast last primary election 2,367 2,367 2,367 1,242 1,242 1,428 1,428 2,364 2,364 2,400
Fire
Medical support calls 2,087 2,426 2,578 2,774 3,085 3,427 3,766 3,778 4,286 4,689
Total alarms 3,128 3,281 3,447 3,697 4,136 4,557 5,137 5,194 5,642 5,050
Inspections/investigations 276 415 222 305 524 487 390 986 1,512 1,505
Public education contacts 7,501 8582 10,018 11,386 7,344 11,764 8,884 10,164 19,801 25,064
Police
Calls for service 26,019 27,602 29,705 33076 37,674 38869 39,365 42412 41,126 40,893
Officer initiated 59,332 63,362 71814 68,677 69588 69412 69,936 72,028 71,626 76,263
Patrolled miles 649,745 654,370 700,884 671,030 716,138 702,062 706,375 802,935 864,421 939,398
Traffic accidents 817 853 796 886 928 1,046 1,213 1,121 1,104 991
Traffic citations 9,163 10,561 9,495 8,408 8,607 7,068 6,127 6,136 6,943 7,025
Arrests (adult and juvenile) 4,785 4,338 4,673 4,773 4,387 4,614 4,055 3,840 4,015 3,981
Culture and recreation - library (a)
ltems in collections 94523 99,414 100,619 100,655 90,826 86,364 73984 74311 75863 79,920
Reference questions 17,199 18912 22,647 18,940 5,776 6,415 14959 80,950 149,296 150,435
Total items circulated 332,691 422,063 374,840 149210 52,240 51915 49,718 73,079 75840 78,727
Total circulation transactions 391,308 733582 734,852 825,000 172,391 170,875 187,063 225,043 229,446 270,473
Economic development
Building permits - commercial 271 279 256 262 262 273 339 143 195 114
Building permits - residential 1,003 1,446 1,333 1,639 1,983 2,565 3,501 1,454 77 329
Self-help homes completed 8 16 24 23 22 6 20 25 25 25
Self-help homes started 16 24 23 15 13 26 27 25 26 25
Housing rehabilitations 13 17 13 16 12 9 12 12 12 12
Code enforcement cases 670 617 675 724 660 1,059 1,704 984 1,150 1,331
Planning cases 155 78 61 114 161 154 334 193 85 95

Sources: Various City departments

Note: (a) In 2004 the library implemented a new system that tracks information more accurately.
In 2007 the library changed Reference questions to include information transactions.
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Schedule 17

City of Casa Grande
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Fire stations 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Parks and recreation
Park areas 25 25 24 23 24 24 24 25 26 26
Parkland acreage 2,152 2,152 1,787 1,783 1,790 1,370 1,370 1,371 1,387 1,396
Community centers 2 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5
Golf courses 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Playgrounds 19 19 19 20 22 22 24 24 25 26
Other maintenance areas 38 71 85 85 85 85 87 88 93 93
Airport
T-hangers 22 22 22 52 52 52 52 52 52 52
T-shades 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
Public works
Total number of streetlights 1,336 1525 1638 1,638 1,893 2,011 2,217 3,130 3,302 3,500
Miles of streets 243 243 307 307 321 354 375 375 389 410
Miles of sewer 105 108 121 121 145 160 300 375 450 455
Number of lift stations 10 10 10 10 10 10 9 9 9 10
Number of signalized intersections 25 26 26 27 27 27 31 31 35 38

Sources: Various City departments
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Hemtiey & Homme, LLp
Caerileed Paublic Sccowmiamia

AEPOHT ON INTERMAL CONTHROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND OGN
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED OM AN ALIDIT OF FINANCLAL
STATEMENTS PEAFORMED 1IN ACCORADANGE WITH QOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Thin Honorabdo Mayos and Council
City of Casa Grande, Anzona

Wo have medted fthe lmancial sialements ol the govermnmmenial aclvities, the
methilios, each major lund, and the aggregate momalndng Fusnd
irdarmation of the City of Casa Grande (the City), as ol and for the year ended June
30, 2008, which coflectively comprisa the City's basic financial slatemanls and have
issuad our report therson dated Movember 18, 2008, 'We conducted o Bt in
accordnnce with audiing standards genenally accepted in the Unfied Siafes ol
Amanica and tha standards applicabla o linensal audils contained in Govarmman
Auiting Standards, Saued by the Comptroller General of the United States,

i | irad i Finimncaal

in planmng and porforming our audl, wo congadersd The City's intemal control over
fimancial reporing a5 & basis lor designing owr audiling procedures fof the purposa of
expressing our opinions on the flinancial statements, bul nol lor the purpose of
axprassing an opinion on the effecthveness of tha City's infernal control over inancial
reporting. Accordingly, we do ol express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City
of Casa Grandg's intomal control over financial reparting,

Our considaration of imemal conirol ovee linancial reporbing was lor the fimiled
purpose descrited in the preceding parsgraph and was nol designed 1o identdy all
deficlencis in intemal confrol over financial reporting that mighl be signdican
deficiencies or maleral wesknesses and herglons, theme can ba no assurancs hal
all deficlencies, significant deficiencies, or maledal weaknesses have bean idenilied.
However, as dscussed below, wa kenbfed coriain delicencies in intemal eontral
ovisr finmncial repaing thal wa considos o be significant deficiencies.

A contiol defesency exsis when the design or oparafion ol a control does not allow
managemant or ampioyeass, in he normal course of performing heir assigned
functions, to prevent of delscl misstalaments on & Umely besis. A ssyeillcan
deliciency s & condrod deficlency, of combination ol conbtral defichkenciss, that
adversely affocts the City's ability to iniliaie, authorize, mecond, process, or repon
financial data relably 0 accordance with gonarally accopbed accounting principles
gich that there is more than & remote [Relihood thal a misstaterment of the Ciy's
financial stabomanin that s mote than nconsequantial will not be prevenbed o
dalaciad by iha City's mbiinal conirol, We consador the deficiency describad in tho
accompanying schedule ol fndings and guestioned costs b0 be a signileant
dinficincy in iMemal control over financial reporting (2009-1),

Tarega A carial illa LoEra Do mmsds
T § s el ine f Corkos Bl TUiS B i L
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Fam § 5000 R¥3- [ T Faw Rl AT 11 P 13207 1386412

121



To Table of Contents

missiatement of tho financial sialements will nol be prevenied or dofecied by ha
City's rterrsal condrel.  'We conaidar the deficiency described in the accompanmying
schachala of findings and questioned costs to ba & matarin! weakness (2008-1),

Complance and Sher Maitars

As paft of oblaining masonable assumnce abou whathar the City's fnanciad
siatements are freo of materal misstatormnont, we porformed fosts of s complinnos
with certain provisions of lows, regulations, contracts, and grant

The City's msponse to the findngs dentified in our aud s described In the
aocompanying schadule of findings and questionad costs. Wa did nol saudit the City's
response and, sccordingly, we express no opinion on (L

This report 8 intended solely for the iformaBon and use of the Gy Council,

fedaral awanding agenciss and pass-throwgh ondies and & not
mbendad 1o ba and should nol ba used by anyone othar than these spocified parties.

At v

Novoembaor 18, 2008
Casa Grande, Anizona
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Herimr & Homrse, Lor

Cartiled Puble Afdounianes

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT OM
COMPLIAMNCE WITH REDUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANGE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A- 133

Tha Honarabla bayor and Council
City of Casa Granda, Asizona

Comgliange

W have autied the compliance of the Gity of Casa Granda [he City), Arizona wilh
the ypes of compliance requirements dascrbed in the LS. Offcs af Masa gemamn
and Budgel (OMB) Cirewar A-133 Complance Supplament thal are applcable 1o
each of ks major fedomnl programs for ihe year ended June 30, 2000 The Cay's
magar lederal programs ame entified in the summany ol auditors resulls secton ol
i mccompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs. Complance wilh tha
requiamanis of laws, reguintons, contracts and grants applcabls 1o each of s
mapyr fedemml programs is the mesponsibility of the Ci's managemend, Oher
responsialty s 10 exprass an opmion on the City's compiance based on our aedl

We conducied our audi of compliance n accordance with audiing standards
penemlly accepled in e United Stales of America; the siandanis appicable o
financial nudits confained 0 Govenmend Audiing Standards, @susd by the
Compirotler Geaneral al e Urdled States; and OMB Clreular A-133, Augils of Stales,
Local Goverrsnonis, and Non-Frofl Organizations.  Thoss standards and OMB
Cincutar A-133 requina thal we plan and pafom tha audl 1o obiain reasonabile assur-
ance aboul whethor noncomplance with the hpes of complance requiremants
referved 10 above that could have a direct mnd matedal effect on a major fodeml
program occurred, A0 audd mcludes oxamining, on a tesd bash, evidanca abaut tha
Ciiy's complinnce with those requirements and pedorming such oiher procedures as
wo considened necessany in e crcumstinces. W Dolieve ihal o ssdi provides 8
reasanable basis lor our opnion, Our audd does nol provide & legal delsmnation
an the Cily's complisncs with ihose requiremants.

in owr opinan, ihe Ciy of Casa Grands, Anzona, compled, in all malenil eepects,
wilh the mquirements relermd 1o above hat am appliicablo 10 each of 8 moe
fadenal programs foe tho year ended Juna 30, 2008
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The Honorabie Mayor and Coundi
Gity of Casa Grande, Arizana

Paga Twa

internad Control Over Complipgnce

Tha management of the City of Casa Grande, Arizona is responsitie for

ard affoctive intermal conirod over with requiramants of laws,

peromming our sudil, we considersd the City's internal control over complianco with
resquirsmignts fhal could have a dinsct and matenal effect on a major ledoral program

mdmmmm Accordingly, we do not eupross an
apinkan on the etfectivenass of the City's infemal control owar compliance,

A conirol deficiency in an enbity's nbernal conirol over compliance axists when
design or oparation of a contral doas nol allow management or employees, in fha
normal course of perorming their assigned funclions, lo prevent or detect
AoRGOMpiance with a type of compliance requinement of a lederal program on &
timedy basia. A matenal woeakness 5 a deficlency of combination ol deficlencies in
imternal control such thai thers is & reasonable possibility that a maborial
noncompEance with 8 type of compliance requiremant of a fedard program sa8 not
bo provented or datected by the entity’s intemal control.

A sgnifican! deficency is a deficlency, of a combination of deliclancies, in infemal
contnod that bs less sovare than 8 matedial weakness, yol impoiant snough fo mer
attention by those charged with governance. We ded not kdentily any deficlencies in
intomal control cver compliance reguiremends of federl peard programs.

Chur considaration of b infemal conbrol ower compliance was. lor tha lmited
descrbed n tha firs! paragraph of this Section and would not necessasily identily all
daficiencies in inlemal conlral thal might be signdicant deficiencies o molodal
weaknassss Wa did nal kleniily sy deliclancies in inamal contral oved comphancs
thiet we consider fo be materal weaknesses, as defined abave,

This report is inlended sololy for the information and uso of The City Coundl,

managoment, ledorn] swarding agencies and pass-through onbtios and s nol
intended 1o be and should not be used by ammne othoer than these specified parties.

"7"‘!‘;‘#:—.%“

Novambar 18, 200G
Gnsn Geanda, Adzrona
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City of Casa Grande, Arizona
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through Arizona Department of Housing:

Community Development Block Grant - 2007
Community Development Block Grant - 2008
Community Development Block Grant - 2008
Community Development Block Grant - 2009
HOME - 2007
HOME - 2008

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Self Help Housing Technical Assistance Grant
State Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program
Total Department of Agriculture

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Passed through Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens:
Special Programs for the Aging
Special Programs for the Aging
Social Services Block Grant
Nutritional Services Incentive Program
Total Department of Health & Human Services

U.S. Department of Justice:
JAG Grant
Bulletproof Vest Grant
JAG Grant
Total Department of Justice

U.S. Department of Transportation:
FAA Airport Grant
FAA Airport Grant
FAA Airport Grant

Total Department of Transportation

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Federal Emergency Management Agency

Passed through Arizona Division of Emergency Management
Arizona Department of Homeland Security

Total Department of Homeland Security

Total Federal Financial Assistance and Expenditures of Federal Awards

*Denotes major program
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Federal

Grant CFDA
Number Number Expenditures
157-07 14.228 42
101-08 14.228 153,850
113-08 14.228 76,374
156-09 14.228 12,000
310-07 14.239 138,278
303-08 14.239 425,180
805,724
10 10.420 141,368
461200 10.561 4,376
145,744
5-237 93.044 13,314
5-237 93.045 54,525
5-237 93.667 12,338
5-237 93.053 23,226
103,403
2007-DJIBX 16.592 28,142
2006BUBX 16.607 609
2006-DJIBX1098 16.592 428
29,179
3-04-0007-10-2006 20.106 558
3-04-0007-11 20.106 15,090
3-04-0007-12-2008 20.106 100,955
116,603
EMW-2007-FF-00468 97.044 227,700
07-AZDOHS-HSGP- 97.067 242,647

333303-01

470,347

$ 1,671,000
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City of Casa Grande
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2009

NOTE 1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of
Casa Grande and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of the financial statements.
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CITY OF CASA GRANDE, ARIZDNA
SCHEDULE OF FINDIMNGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended Juna 30, 2008

Summary of Auditors’ Flesulis

1.

B

The auddce's repor eqgresses an ungquelfied opinion on tha financial
statements of the City of Casa Grande,

One signdican] delssncy nolaling lo the audil of the linancial staismants s
faponed.

Mo mslances of noncomphance material 1o the finansal statements of ha
City of Casa Grands ware disclosed during tha audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to thoe audit of thoe major fedeml awrd
pOgrimS ane ropored,
Thumlﬂ'lrmmaﬁmmhruawumm
Urban Development - Grani pessed through Arzona Depanment of
mwmmﬂuw

The audit desclosed no lindings that am required to be reported in accordance
wath Saction 510(a) of OME Circular A-133.

The programs tesfed as major programs inclede U S, Depament of Housing
and Wrban Devalopment - HOME Grant (GFDA 14.239)

Tha Ihreshold used for destinguishing betwoan Type A and B programs was
£300.000.

City of Casa Grands qualilied as a low-rsk audites,

10, There were no prior year lindings.
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CITY OF CASA GRANDE
SCHEDULE OF ALIDIT FINDINGS
JUNE 30, 2009

Financial Statement Findings
20091 Joumal entry refated to accounts piyabla

Condtion: The City did not have propes condngls o record sccoums: payabile i the
proper panod.

Critaria: Proper controls ower the financial repording process ol accounts payable am
nacassany 1o ensure proper application of ganorally accepted accounting principlas.

EMect: A malodal audd adjustmen was mace 19 oomsc! atcounis payable,
expendiunes in the hind financial statemants, and capital assets in thin govemmen|-
widi linancial stalemants.

Cause: Management did nol have proper ovensighl over the process of recording
nonstandand accounts payables inbo (he proper panod,

Recommendation: Weo recommeand that thea linance department have a process in
place 1o monitor and review the reconding of accounts payabia into the propar peniod.
Wea also recommend that the fnance depanment parorm a test of large cash
disbissements after year end io enswe irensaclions are reconded in

pariod.

8 response:  Tho finance will implamant a procass io
troview and assure the mcording of accounts payable are in the proper pariod. The
process mequined the coordination of ihe Banior actounis

farge cash disbumements ko ensure that paymenls are made 0 he cormec! pariod.
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